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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed
to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on
GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of
giving information with regard to Asian Capital Resources
(Holdings) Limited. The directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report
have been arrived at after due and careful consideration
and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair
and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

| am pleased to present the annual results of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

In 2013, faced with the intensified competition and
increased concentration in the IPTV industry, as well as
the challenging macro-economic conditions in the PRC,
the management was able to focus on its strategy of
diversifying the sectors in which the Company offered
our services to. The Group believes through its great
effort it has well positioned itself with its dynamic
professional background, sound internal management and
competitiveness to carry out the strategy during this period
of challenge and uncertainty.

During the period under review the Board and the
management have been carefully assessing the market
situation of the PRC IPTV industry. The findings revealed
that the market has become extremely competitive and
the prices for the resources in the industry have increased
drastically. This was a result of the large investments by
the major competitors that have recently entered into
the industry. They range from major Telecommunication
giants of China Telecom, China Unicom and China Mobile
to major Information Technology firms such as Alibaba,
Baidu and Tencent. The telecommunication giants are
currently leveraging their traditional broadband services
subscribers to convert into IPTV subscribers. For Alibaba
and Tencent, the former has just made advances on the
developing a new Operating System for smart TVs while
the latter has just formed a venture with LeTV and have
entered the market for smart TV. And in May of 2013 Baidu
acquired an online video provider, PPS. Together with both
their strong financial base and a very large existing users,
this sector has become extremely difficult to operate in. In
addition, the technology of the IPTV platform has become
increasingly accessible with many firms offering different
more advanced and competitive platforms on a regular
basis.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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During the 2nd half of the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Group equipped with the Management Agreement,
which was backed by the infrastructure capability,
commenced a drive for incremental revenues for the
multimedia derivative businesses which included our IPTV
platform, and by expanding the “brick and clicks” model,
by way of active participation and penetration into recently
completed mixed used commercial development and outlet
mall in Guangzhou and Shanghai, as pilot and test market
for the initiatives.

As a result of stepped up coverage by prominent internet
operators and telecom companies in China, the test market
initiative experienced fierce competition on all aspect
of media and advertising prepositions. The challengers
were supported by their vast resources in both financial
and human capital, which caused less optimism by the
Group’s management in the expanding of the media
derivative operations, and the level of financial investments,
as committed under the management agreement,
signed in February 2013, in order to retain sustainable
competitiveness against all these challengers in the future.
The decision to divest the management and corporate
resources to other less capital intensive services were
the result also of the short tenure of the management
agreement with Guangdong Yingxin, and the level of fees
that can be generated from this sector, based on the
performance of the year under management.

In the current challenging and extremely competitive market
conditions, the Board and management have decided
to operate carefully and navigate with prudence and
implemented a strategy of diversifying the sectors in which
the Company offered our services to. The Company is
currently exploring an opportunity to leverage our expertise
in our project and management services, and diversifying it
into the Financial Services sector.

The Company views that there is presently an opportunity
to explore more services to be provided in the financial
services sector.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

The Group’s Financial Services division is currently
concentrating its efforts in setting up a Foreign-invested
Equity Investment Enterprise in Qianhai Free Trade Zone in
Shenzhen PRC. This is for the Company to take advantage
of the preferential policies in the financial sector being
promoted in the Qianhai zone. With the establishment of
the Qianhai Foreign-invested Equity Investment Enterprise
the Company would be well positioned to benefit and to
offer a range of financial services that are currently being
stimulating in Qianhai but have been strictly regulated in the
past. Subject to the changes of the preferential policies in
Qianhai, the types of financial services that the Company
will be well positioned to offer will be (i) the development
of foreign-invested equity investment funds, foreign
exchange settlement of capital funds, investment and fund
management (ii) the expansion of offshore RMB fund flow-
back channels, and the establishment of cross-border RMB
business (iii) the granting of RMB loans for offshore projects
(iv) the issuance of RMB bonds in Hong Kong.

With this strategy the Board and Management believes it is
in a good position to achieve a higher level of performance
and to navigate through this difficult and competitive market
conditions.

On behalf of the Board, we would also like to take this
opportunity to thank the Group’s clients, suppliers,
vendors, banks business partners, consultants and
shareholders for their support and trust generously given
to the Group. The Board also expresses gratitude to the
management and staff for their work and dedication during
the past years.

Mr. Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover and loss attributable to shareholders

The total turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 was approximately HK$153,756,000
(2012: HK$ 6,574,000) which was increased by
approximately 23 times as compared to that of the previous
financial year.

The increase in total turnover is attributed to Guangdong
Yingxin’'s turnover which was under management of the
Company via the management service agreement. While
the level of fees generated by the management service
agreement was based upon the performance of the year
which was the net profit minus investment requirements of
Guangdong Yingxin.

The audited consolidated loss from operations for the
year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately
HK$22,988,000 which has increased by 23.17% compared
with the corresponding period last year, HK$18,663,000.
The substantial increase in loss for the year is mainly
attributable to the further impairment made for the
Intangible Asset from 2012’s approximately HK$4,952,000
to HK$13,005,000 for 2013.

The loss was a result of further impairment of intangible
asset; as evident by the revenue reduction of the fourth
quarter in the multimedia platform under management and
control of the Company, couple with the realisation of the
market volatility in this sector, by reviewing some major
players’ performance which reconfirm the competitiveness
of this operational sector under management, the Board
decided to prudently, made provision against the licensing
value of the media businesses. The valuation was provided
by a professional firm of valuers and was in accordance
to the applicable accounting standards governing the
Company; therefore reflecting the fair value of the
operation.

Financial cost

The financial cost of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 was approximately HK$1,097,000 (2012:
HK$5,662,000) which was decreased by approximately
80.63% as compared to that of the same period of last
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREN R NAOT

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s
borrowing consists of an amount due to the Company’s
substantial shareholder of HK$25,106,000, and an
amount due to a director of 5,537,000. The Group had
a cash balance of approximately HK$50,175,000 (2012:
HK$46,000).

The Group continues to adopt a prudent treasury policy
to maintain its cash balance either in Hong Kong Dollars,
or in the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries,
maintaining a minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks.

The issued share capital of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 has increased from HK$138,551,890 as at
31 December 2012 to HK$148,551,890.

Gearing ratio

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the gearing ratio of
the Group, expressed as a percentage of net debt divided
by the total capital plus net debt, was 92.90% (2012:
213.39%).

Employee and remuneration policies

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
employed a total of 6 employees (as at 31 December
2012: 16), of which 3 were located in Hong Kong and
the remaining 3 were located in the PRC. The Group’s
remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market
practices and formulated on the basis of performance
and experience of the employees. The salary and related
benefits of the employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis and the general remuneration structure of the
Group is subject to review annually.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies

Deregistration and winding-up of various subsidiaries
in the Group

The Board has resolved that, in order to reduce the
operating costs of the Group, those subsidiaries within
the Group which no longer add value to, nor generate any
income attributable to the Group, should be deregistered,
or voluntarily wound up.

Those subsidiary which is currently in the deregistration
process is: Sinobase Asia Limited.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Those subsidiaries which are currently being voluntarily
wound up are: Asian Information Investment Consulting
Limited, BuyCollection.com Limited, and Myhome Network
Limited.

Operational Review

During the period under review, the Group was focusing
its effort in its management services while enhancing a
successful corporate synergy with its strategic partners.
Furthermore the Group continues to research, develop
and explore investment opportunities which are strategic
to its business operations. Via the revenue generated by
the services provided and other assets from the group it
has sufficient cashflow generated to operate its business
as a going concern. The Company does not have any
financial difficulties to an extent that may seriously impair
the Company’s ability to continue its business.

The Board, looking forward, views that by concentrating
on providing our services and expanding on its financial
services will enhance the company’s incremental business
and the future value of the company.

Management Services and Information Technology
Division

During the period under review the Board and the
management have been carefully assessing the market
situation of the PRC IPTV industry. The findings revealed
that the market has become extremely competitive and
the prices for the resources in the industry have increased
drastically. This was a result of the large investments by
the major competitors that have recently entered into
the industry. They range from major Telecommunication
giants of China Telecom, China Unicom and China Mobile
to major Information Technology firms such as Alibaba,
Baidu and Tencent. The telecommunication giants are
currently leveraging their traditional broadband services
subscribers to convert into IPTV subscribers. For Alibaba
and Tencent, the former has just made advances on the
developing a new Operating System for smart TVs while
the latter has just formed a venture with LeTV and have
entered the market for smart TV. And in May of 2013 Baidu
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREN R NAOT

acquired an online video provider, PPS. Together with both
their strong financial base and a very large existing users,
this sector has become extremely difficult to operate in. In
addition, the technology of the IPTV platform has become
increasingly accessible with many firms offering different
more advanced and competitive platforms on a regular
basis.

During the 2nd half of the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Group equipped with the Management Agreement,
which was backed by the infrastructure capability,
commenced a drive for incremental revenues for the
multimedia derivative businesses which included our IPTV
platform, and by expanding the “brick and clicks” model,
by way of active participation and penetration into recently
completed mixed used commercial development and outlet
mall in Guangzhou and Shanghai, as pilot and test market
for the initiatives.

As a result of stepped up coverage by prominent internet
operators and telecom companies in China, the test market
initiative experienced fierce competition on all aspect
of media and advertising prepositions. The challengers
were supported by their vast resources in both financial
and human capital, which caused less optimism by the
Group’s management in the expanding of the media
derivative operations, and the level of financial investments,
as committed under the management agreement,
signed in February 2013, in order to retain sustainable
competitiveness against all these challengers in the future.
The decision to divest the management and corporate
resources to other less capital intensive services were
the result also of the short tenure of the management
agreement with Guangdong Yingxin, and the level of fees
that can be generated from this sector, based on the
performance of the year under management.

In the current challenging and extremely competitive market
conditions, the Board and management have decided
to operate carefully and navigate with prudence and
implemented a strategy of diversifying the sectors in which
the Company offered our services to. The Company is
currently exploring an opportunity to leverage our expertise
in our project and management services, and diversifying it
into the Financial Services sector.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

With this strategy the Board and Management believes it is
in a good position to achieve a higher level of performance
and to navigate through this difficult and competitive market
conditions within the industry.

Financial Services

The Company views that there is presently an opportunity
to explore more services to be provided in the financial
services sector.

The Group’s Financial Services division is currently
concentrating its efforts in setting up a Foreign-invested
Equity Investment Enterprise in Qianhai Free Trade Zone in
Shenzhen PRC. This is for the Company to take advantage
of the preferential policies in the financial sector being
promoted in the Qianhai zone. With the establishment of
the Qianhai Foreign-invested Equity Investment Enterprise
the Company would be well positioned to benefit and to
offer a range of financial services that are currently being
stimulating in Qianhai but have been strictly regulated in the
past. Subject to the changes of the preferential policies in
Qianhai, the types of financial services that the Company
will be well positioned to offer will be (i) the development
of foreign-invested equity investment funds, foreign
exchange settlement of capital funds, investment and fund
management (ii) the expansion of offshore RMB fund flow-
back channels, and the establishment of cross-border RMB
business (iii) the granting of RMB loans for offshore projects
(iv) the issuance of RMB bonds in Hong Kong.

Currently the Company has been equipped with senior
management level professionals with extensive experiences
and track record in the financial sector. The Company’s
executive director, Dr. Feng Ke, is currently the department
head and researcher of Real Estates Finance Research
Center of the Beijing University Economics Faculty, and is
also a board director of another Hong Kong exchange listed
company that engages in the business of specializing in
providing short-term loans secured by collateral to SMEs
and individuals in the PRC. With the board’s expertise and
leadership the Company feels it has greatly positioned itself
to provide more services in the financial sector.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREN R NAOT

In January of 2014, the Company has established a Joint
Venture Company in Hong Kong that provides capital
management and related activities in Asia Pacific area. With
the major shareholder of the Joint Venture Partner being
principally engaged in the business of asset management,
fund management, investment management and consulting
service in the PRC, the Board considers that the formation
of the Joint Venture Company shall bring business
synergies by leveraging on the experience, expertise and
resources of the Joint Venture Partner.

The Company is also in the very preliminary negotiations
for an acquisition for a Shanghai company that engages
in the business of asset management, fund management,
investment management and consulting service in the
PRC. In the portfolio of the funds that the target company
manages consists of specialty funds that invests in the
production of PRC TV series (the fund size for one of the
aforementioned fund is RMB 100 million). The Company
views that with expertise and experience gained in the IPTV
industry it would serve as a strong platform and synergy for
the Company to explore in this opportunity. It is currently
in the very early stages of discussion and there are no
certainty that there would be any business transactions
between the two parties going forward and no document
was executed during the preliminary period.

Furthermore, apart from the aforementioned operations,
the Group continues to research, develop and explore
investment opportunities which are strategic to its business
operations and which will contribute significantly to the
return of the Company’s shareholders.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xie Xuan

Chairman

Mr. Xie, aged 44, joined the Group in 2002. Mr. Xie holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Group. He has
over 19 years of successful investment and management
experience in the areas of property and logistics in
the People’s Republic of China. He graduated from
Jinan University, the PRC with a degree in International
Economics.

Mr. Xiao Jing

Mr. Xiao Jing, aged 33, graduated from the University
of Southern California. He was recruited at International
Business Machines Corporation (IBM) in 2001 as
Trading Manger. From 2002 to 2005, he established AB
International Co. Ltd., Billion Image Co. Ltd and Tri-G Co.
Ltd respectively in the United States. In 2006, he founded
the Taylor Investment & Management Consultants Co.
Ltd. in China, which mainly engaged in commercial real
estate investment and development in Mainland China. In
addition, Mr. Xiao established AB International Investment
Co. and served as chairman in U.S.A. From 2009 to
present, he serves as Executive Director of Guangzhou
Pearl River Yunsheng Textile Market Administration Co.,
Ltd. and Guangzhou Pearl River Commercial Real Estate
Management Co. Ltd.

Mr. Chu Yat Hong

Mr. Chu, aged 30, holds EMBA Master Degree from
Zhongshan University of China. From September 2001 to
November 2009, Mr. Chu was Assistant to the Managing
Director of Pearl River Investment Group; July 2005
to October 2009, as Managing Director of Guangzhou
Pearl River Yunsheng Textile Market Administration Co.,
Ltd., Guangzhou Pearl River Commercial Real Estate
Management Co. Ltd. and Guangzhou Pearl River
Commercial Logistic Investment Co. Ltd. From May 2012
until now, as the Deputy Managing Director of Pearl River
Investment Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EZNEMEEAEB[N

Mr. Qiu Yue

Mr. Qiu, aged 44, joined the Company in October 2008.
Mr. Qiu graduated from Zhongshan University, the People’s
Republic of China in 1991, with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
Mr. Qiu has worked in the advertising business for more
than 12 years and was the general manager of Guangzhou
Wavecom Communication and Advertising Limited from
1992 to 2006, and is now the general manager of South
Pearl Limited, both companies having been acquired by the
Company on 24 December 2007.

Dr. Feng Ke

Dr. Feng, aged 42, joined the Group in October 2008. Dr.
Feng holds a PHD in theoretic economics from the Beijing
University, the People’s Republic of China. Presently he
is the department head and researcher of Real Estates
Finance Research Center, of the Beijing University
Economics Faculty. Dr. Feng is an independent compliance
advisor in the publicly listed company Sky Land Resources
Limited, and is an independent director in the publicly listed
company Guang Yu Development Limited, both companies
being listed in the People’s Republic of China. He now
serves as an Independent Non-executive Director of China
Huirong Financial Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 01290).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond

Mr. Lo Mun Lam, born in September 1953, has been an
independent Non-executive Director since he joined the
Group in June 2001. Trained as a Chartered Accountant in
England & Wales, he also qualified as a Canadian Chartered
Professional Accountant. He studied Juris Doctor in
California and is member of International Bar Association.

Mr. Lo is licensed as a Responsible Officer by the Securities
& Futures Commission of Hong Kong for providing Type
6 (corporate finance) advisory. He held directorate level
or strategist positions with multinational financial and
emerging companies internationally. He was formerly the
Chairman and an Independent Non-executive Director
of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (stock code:
00590). He now serves as an Independent Non-executive
Director of Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (stock
code: 00755), as Independent Non-executive Director
of China Datong Corporation Renewable Power Co.
Ltd., (stock code: 01798) and as an Independent Non-
executive Director and the Chairman of Audit Committee
of Guangshen Railway Co., Ltd. (stock code: 00525). Mr.
Lo graduated from the University of Wisconsin — Madison
in business administration and holds the Master of Laws
degree from the University of Hong Kong. He received
his Postgraduate Certificate in Sustainable Business from
the University of Cambridge and achieved a certification
of Independent Non-executive Director issued by the SSE
(Shanghai Stock Exchange).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Wu, aged 68, holds a Master degree in Economics. He is
currently a professor, guest lecturer and visiting scholar at a
number of colleges and universities in the PRC and abroad. He
has published more than 262 papers and 18 books in the areas
of economics, finance and management.

Mr. Zhang Daorong

Mr. Zhang, aged 42, is a Certified Public Accountant and
Certified Tax Agent in the People’s Republic of China.
He holds a Bachelor degree in Economics and a Masters
degree in Business Administration. He has over 17 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and taxation. He is
currently a project manager in a firm of certified public
accountants in the PRC.
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EZNEMEEAEB[N

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

Mr. Zheng, aged 55, was graduated from the Department
of Economic of Renmin University of China with a Master
Degree in 1987. Currently Mr. Zheng is a researcher of
the Institute of Economics of the Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences and a doctoral student supervisor of
the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences. Mr. Zheng’s field of research mainly covers the
areas in respect of microeconomics, comparative study
of corporate system, theory of corporate governance,
and revolution of state enterprises. Meanwhile, Mr. Zheng
is currently the Executive Vice-Editor-in-Chief and the
director of editorial office of Economic Research Journal
("CAEEERTFT )", which is a leading PRC journal in economic
theory research published by the Institute of Economics of
Chinese Academy of Social Science.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Ting Lok

Mr. Lam Ting Lok, aged 41, has over 13 years’ experience
in the accounting and financial industry. He has extensive
experience in IPO, M&A, fund raising and corporate
advisory. He started his career in an international audit firm
in 1995 and then devoted himself in the corporate finance
and fund management fields since 2000. Mr. Lam Ting Lok
holds a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a charterholder of the Chartered Financial
Analyst. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Enterprise Development Holdings Limited and
Wonderful Sky Finance Group Holdings Limited, both of
which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong.

Mr. Kong Yeuk Hon, John

Mr. Kong, aged 55, joined the Group in October 2005.
Mr. Kong holds a Master of Science Degree in Applied
Accounting and Finance from the Baptist University of Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kong has over 12
years experience in commercial accounting field.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. An
analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit/(loss) before
taxation for the year ended 31 December 2013 by principal
activities is as follows:
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ARRESR([EF ] EHERE
ARARBRACGEBE—_FT—=F1T_H
=+ HLEFEZEECHBHERE -

WG

REBREBRBEI S 2EERT

ARBZETBEBRREER - BRANEBE AR
ATEEB2HBRARNKRAM BRI E
5o AKREBE_T—=F1+-A=+—H
LHFERFEXHI D 2EXBREHAG
FA(BR)DHIT

Loss before

Turnover taxation
X RKRAuEsE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FATT FHET
By Principal activities: BREBXBED -
Internet broadband business management B ERERERE R
and internet protocol television service BB ERREUA
income 153,148 (19,415)
Consultancy service income ARSI A 608 (279)
153,756 (19,694)

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and loss before taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2013 by geographical
areas is as follows:

AEEHE_T-—=F+_HA=+—HILF
MR E S 2 EEERRBATEES TN
T

Loss before

Turnover taxation
B¥HE RBinmsE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHIT FHAIT

By geographical areas R &l o
PRC =8 158,756 (19,694)
158,756 (19,694)
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 40 to 123 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 124.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2013.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Based on information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as
at the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of this
annual report, the Directors can confirm that at least 25%
of the Company’s total listed issued share capital has at all
times been held by the public, as required by Rule 11.23 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year is set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2012: Nil) in
accordance with the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman)

Mr. Xiao Jing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chu Yat Hong

Mr. Qiu Yue

Dr. Feng Ke

Non-executive Director
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (Vice Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Zhang Daorong

Mr. Zheng Hongliang (joined on 01 September 2013)

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the articles of
association of the Company, Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond,
Mr. Wu Jixue and Mr. Zheng Hongliang shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. The retiring Directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors to be proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has an unexpired service contract that is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensations.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, none of the directors had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or subsisted during
the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Particulars of retirement benefit schemes are set out in note
3k(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions disclosed in note 24 and
29 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements
constitute the connected transactions under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The non-executive directors of the Company had reviewed
the connected transactions of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and have confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of Group;
either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms
no less favorable than those available to or from
independent third parties;

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions;

(i) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditors
have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rule 20.38. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(A)

Interests and short positions of the Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares,
or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571, (“SFO”)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) contained in the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of
HK$0.10 each (the “Shares”) of the Company
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(A)

ESERNATIREMAMEEZ RS - HE
Rz BHZEBRIRE

RZE—=F+_A=+—H" K27
EERTHAER AR R ERABEE
(EERBHNHBERA(TESF PSR
1&01]) » E571ZEXVEL) 2% « 187
[y RiESHHER(QBARBEESF MRS
1'¢1§|J%XV*I3%7&8’“*B%DAZF A) M B

Rz Em MR E (BIEBREES L
%’iﬂ%fﬁﬂ%&“%ﬂm?%&ﬁf’ﬁ%”‘f”E%?EEZ%
HEKRE) (o) BIRIEZEAFREEK
Bl S5 352 K Ae N Z G FTIEE R 2
KR k(o) BIRAIZEIR ETH AR R
el EmEiT AESETTHE %X%ZH

s A (MR 257 I ) & 2 m) Ko Bt 32 P
ZRBSORBIT

(i) MREXLGEREE0.10#ETTSEE
B(TRRH#1)ZI17E

Number of issued Shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FHERTRIHE  SHRERME

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued Shares
as at 31 December
Through 2013
Directly spouse or Through EXATR
beneficially  minor children controlled Beneficiary —§-=
owned BaREY corporation of a trust Total +-B=+-H
ERELHR FREFE  EAREEE ERZEA @it ZERARBEMM
Directors EZ
Mr.ChuYatHong  K—fi%4E - - 544,514,782 - 544,514,782 36.66%
(Note 1)
(Bft1)
Mr. Xie Xuan AEEE - - 544,514,782 - 544,514,782 36.66%
(Note 1)
(Bt1)
Mr. Qiu Yue ilFelte 15,430,000 - 18,620,436 - 34,050,436 2.29%
(Note 2)
(ko)
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Note 1: The controlled corporation is Glamour
House Limited, which is accustomed to
acting in accordance with Mr. Xie Xuan’s
instructions who is its sole director. Mr. Chu
Yat Hong holds 90% of the company shares
and the company is the beneficial owner as
to 67.18% of Asian Dynamics International
Limited.

Note 2:  The controlled corporation is Lucky Peace
Limited, which is incorporated in Samoa,
and which is 100% wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu
Yue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December
2013, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including any interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

MiFE1 : 3% % ¥ % B B Glamour
House Limited @ #% 2 &
BHREE-—SE5HEL
EHERITE - K—M i
£ B0% AR KK A
A 7] A Asian Dynamics
International Limited 2~
67.18% 2 BlEB A ©

MizE2 : &L E Alucky Peace
Limited » 5 BE £ 2o 52 it AC
Vo mBBEEEERR
100% °

BREXEEIN RZT—=F+_H
:+—EI ' %%i’&jﬁﬁlﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\

NEAFEEEAABEE(EERES R
HIE R PIEXVER) 2 Bty ~ HHRBERK () 3
BT EAEREZF NP ERHZE
XV*B%7&8’\*B§EHA“T&H’é‘ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁz
BalXkE (BEREZESRAEED
EZ%MX?E%ET’E‘X”‘f’ETﬁEﬁZ%ﬁ&u\
B RARBEFNMBE ﬂﬂﬁﬂ%352
ﬂ%EEﬁ*B’\E%mFﬁTEZEDEH}WZV*D

B HARRBRE TT/H\IJ%H@/L\\T&EH%X
FﬁZTEmﬁ/mE‘. °



(B)

Interests and short positions of the Substantial (B)
Shareholders in the Shares, underlying shares

and debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2013, so far as was known to
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed
or taken to have, an interest or short position in the
Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, were as
follows:

(i)

(ii)

Long Positions in the Shares

Name of Shareholder

REEH

Capacity
St
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FRERRNALB Zix - HE KRG R
AHZERRRE

R-ZE—=F+-A=+—H BE=
FRRITHAEMA U TAL(ES
A RITTEAR SRR M) B B 10 B 4 B i
MHHEAR  ARESNEFRBREE
F MG RPIEXVERE2 37 BBAR A
BB EmIOARANT

(i) RRHZHFE

Percentage of

the Company’s

issued Shares

as at

31 December 2013

TG

Number of R-E-=%
Shares +-A=+-H
RIYHE ZEBBETRHEN

Glamour House Limited

Asian Dynamics International Limited
Logic Ease Group Limited
Blue Balloon Limited

Sweetly Limited

Interest of a controlled corporation 544,514,782 36.66%

(Note 1)
RrrE R (feE1)
Beneficial owner (Note 2)
EnfA AME2)
Beneficial Owner
EREBA
Beneficial Owner
EaBAA
Beneficial Owner
ERBAA

Note 1: The controlled corporation is Asian
Dynamics International Limited, which is
beneficially owned as to 67.18% by Glamour

House Limited.

Note 2:  The controlled corporation is Glamour
House Limited, which is beneficially owned
as to 90% by Mr. Chu Yat Hong, and which
is the beneficial owner as to 67.18% of
Asian Dynamics International Limited.

Long Positions in the Underlying Shares

Nil

544,396,132 36.65%
86,500,000 5.82%
86,500,000 5.82%
86,500,000 5.82%

Mzt & % & A & Asian
Dynamics International
Limited * F3Glamour House
Limited Bz H67.18% ©

ffzE2 &% X % & B & Glamour
House Limited * 2k — #i
EEBEREEIN% IR
Asian Dynamics International
Limited Z 67.18% 1 25 2 &
@B A °

(i) RIEFERHBZIFE
i
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures in the Company or any other body
corporate granted to any Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates had an interest
in a business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group nor any
conflicts of interest which has or may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDER

As far as the Directors are aware of, other than Asian
Dynamics International Limited, Glamour House Limited,
Mr. Chu Yat Hong, Mr. Xie Xuan, Logic Ease Group Limited,
Blue Balloon Limited and Sweetly Limited as disclosed
above, there was no other person as at 31 December 2013
who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
of the shares then in issue of the Company and who was
able, as a practicable matter, to direct or influence the
management of the Company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Cheng & Cheng Limited was first appointed as auditor of
the Company on 3 December 2012 upon the retirement of
Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited.

The consolidated financial statements for the year have
been audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited. Cheng & Cheng
Limited retired and offers themselves for re-appointment as
auditor of the Company at the next annual general meeting
of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

EEBARGNEFZHER

B LXK EESN - REIAREAEE - EWE
FAREFEAZIRBIARANFF LM EER
AIREBARR RS MEAMEABEZ KD
SESMESNEZ BN FFTETET
o] LAt R RRR] - HERARRELMR
MEARXKARME QR &R BT EW
R BMEEE  WESBZEBIKRKF
FRABAREAEMEAE R 2 R

FREHER
ARRZEETHEBERRREES B 25
CAMEBEREEARERBERIHEEBK
BERAEBREF R ENEE
BRI A TAFISER -

EEERER

B | X BT #% 58 Asian Dynamics International
Limited + Glamour House Limited * 2k —fi %
& - #EE A - Logic Ease Group Limited
Blue Balloon Limited }z Sweetly Limited4h + 1%
BEMRA RBE—=F+-A=+—81"
MEAHEGCAEREXEEEERAQRER
BETRMD%INA Lo R R BER XG5
TERRNREEIE-

I8 3L A% BUET
BERHMEHMEARAARKE (BB G
ST EBMAERARRER KB
T-A=BEREREARD FMLEE -

REE 256 B WK b B E & 560 E 5
BRAAEZ MELESAMEBAERA
AIAREEBRBEFA S LRE - EFAE
RABBRERRAF RS LBEET -
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance. The Board
recognises that such commitment is essential in upholding
the accountability and transparency and to achieve a
balance of interests between the shareholders, customers,
creditors, employees as well as other stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

To ensure compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules, the Board will continue to monitor and revise
the Company code to bring our corporate governance
practices in line with the changes in the environment and
requirements of the Code. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Company has complied with all the provisions of the
Code, for the year ended 31 December 2013, except:

(i) under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive Directors
of the Company are appointed for a specific term. This
constitutes a deviation from the code provision. However, all
the Non-executive Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at annual general meetings pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of
dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with all the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2013.

TEERRSE

ARBAHRBNERL HESTEEZLEE
B BERERRUSARREFRENER
B YERARR TP ERA RBERH
A A LS T faae -

it

FEEELGERTA

FERETRIER E MR RIS E 2
ER (=781 EF@REBEEN
BRI RRSTR RS ARRAREEERERT
BRBZEBLERTUNER - EFERR - AR
ARBE-_FT—=Ft+_A=1t—BLFE
W —BEETTRIRE - TSRS -

(MREBETAA4G  SERTTEFRRBREEL
HIW A REE - ARRBBZIFNTES
WAREREEETH - Hub B Y 57 AR 2R
BE o AT REBEARB ZEMERAMA - AT
BARARFZERTESESHARNKRRBFAE L
WESE -

EFETESFXHZ A

ARARDERMAIER ETHARAIES5.48%£5.67
FRASRETEECREENRETETES
RHZITRTA -

i
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on
behalf of the shareholders. The Board is of the view that
it is the Directors’ responsibility to create value for the
shareholders as a whole and safeguard the best interests
of the Company and the shareholders by discharging its
duties in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on the
principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of nine Directors, with five
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman), Mr.
Xiao Jing (Chief Executive), Mr. Chu Yat Hong, Mr. Qiu
Yue and Dr. Feng Ke; one non-executive Director namely
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (Vice-Chairman), and three
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wu Jixue,
Mr. Zhang Daorong and Mr. Zheng Hongliang. They are
professionals in different areas and provide independent
opinions based on their expertise.

BOARD PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS
Proposed regular Board meeting dates for a year are
informed to each Director at the beginning of the year.
Formal notice of at least 14 days will be given in respect of
a regular meeting. For special board meeting, reasonable
notice will be given. Directors participated, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication in the
Board meetings. The Board of Directors meets regularly at
least 4 times a year. The Directors participated in person
or through other means of communication. All notices
of board meetings were given to all Directors, who were
given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
discussion. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis
of major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses,
including relevant rules and regulations. Directors can also
seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary. Minutes of
each board meeting will be kept and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on request by any Director.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of the legal action against the Directors.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The Company has established formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new
directors. The procedures and process of appointment,
re-election and removal of directors are laid down in the
Company’s Articles of Association. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything
herein, the chairman of the Board shall not, whilst holding
such office, be subject to retirement by rotation or be
taken into account in determining the number of Directors
to retire in each year. Accordingly, as at the date of this
report, Mr. Xie Xuan, being the chairman of the Company,
is not subject to retirement by rotation. Other relevant
Articles state that all Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to re-election by shareholders
at their first annual general meeting after appointment, a
retired Director shall be eligible for re-election. All Directors
should retire by rotation at least once every three years. The
nomination committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors.

TEERRSE

BEEZRE
AAFEREE BT L BE Y 2 REFDIE
HUB & Z IR AR %k -

ZEREEESE
ARPEBFHA—ELER - ZEAFREEHR
BEZ2REHMEEEF EFZME EELE
RRFEBEFINAARZEABERMA -
REARBZEBERMAR - REEBRE
FABL ER=ZDZZ2ER(XEES
HEWIHE=Q)ZEE - MUK AETER
= —RE)ARESE  BEHMER
MABHRE EFSXIFEBRBHEBAR
BERIEETBFREEETZIAUEFE
EA e Bt Rib¥RE B H - AR EEH
BAEHAXBRNWESR - HtAEEMAR
AR MERERERETRMEREZES
REEZFR2EARRBFAS LEXK
RESR  RIEZFEAERZHEEE - U
EXAEIB=-FHESE-— X -RELZE
EZEIBVEERRTEFEZRE - )
kG UREABEEERATEANES
g BERBUINTERZBUUELRRES
ZERE BRNEZZAEAEERESTS
RHZER -

SMEEGER)BRAT

27



28

Annual Report 2013

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
DEEARE

During the year, 11 Board meetings and 1 annual general
meeting (“AGM”) were held. Details of the attendance of the
Directors are as follows.

REA

CHEBTT-REFEGENRK
REFRE([RRBFKRKE])  -EFEKE
SRLERENT

Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual general
Directors EE Directors Committee Committee Committee meeting
B8 EREEE REZEE FWEEE REEEXE
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman) SELE(EE) 1111 N/A/ TiEf N/A/ TiER 2/2 il
Mr. Xiao Jing (Chief Executive) BRERE (TR EH) 811 NA/FER  NA/TER  NA/TER 0/1
Mr. Chu Yat Hong K—mik 7M1 NA/TER S NA/TER S NA/TER 0/
Mr. Qiu Yue B#xE 81 NA/TER  NA/TER  NA/TER 11
Dr. Feng Ke HEHEL 411 2/2 1/1 1/1 0/
Non-Exceutive Directors EHTEE
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond ESRLE(FEE)
(Vice-Chairman) Mt NA/TER 111 NA/TER 1/1
Independent Non-Executive BIEHTERE
Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue TES%E 51 44 NA/TEH 212 0/1
Mr. Zhang Daorong REEKE 5/11 3/4 111 NA/TER 0/
Mr. Zheng Hongliang LAy 2/2 22 NA/TiER 1 NA/TER

On 1 September 2013 Mr. Chu Yat Hong resigned as the
Chairman of the Board; Mr. Xie Xuan was appointed as
the Chairman of the Board; Mr. Xiao Jing was appointed
as the Chief Executive of the Company; Dr. Feng Ke was
re-designated as an Executive Director and resigned as
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee, member the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee; and
Mr. Zheng Hongliang was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect
from 1 September 2013 and discussed all measurable
objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to be
made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon
the merits and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every newly appointed
director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Besides, Directors
should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors will be arranged and reading materials on relevant
topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

TEERRSE
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the
current Directors received the following training with an
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director
of a listing company in compliance with the CG Code on
continuous professional development during the Year.

Corporate Governance
Updates on Laws Rules &

REARBFE R BEEERAFE
BEXUATEHRLETARESZAE - Bt
BEZEI NETEERESERRZE
EERTH -

Accounting Financial/
Management or

Regulations Other Professional Skills
EER BRES - RA EEa/BHES - A
RplzeHmas REGIzRmHER
Attended Attended
Read Seminars or Read Seminars or
Materials Briefing Materials Briefings
HEwHE HEtE
Directors = MG BiRE GEEE R
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman) HERE(FE) Y/ & Y/ & Y/ % Y/ =
Mr. Xiao Jing (Chief Executive) YIER A (TTEAEE) Y/ Y/ % Y/ & Y/ R
Mr. Chu Yat Hong K—MEkE Y/ & - Y/ Y/ R
Mr. Qiu Yue EpMISE 4 Y/ R Y/ & - Y/
Dr. Feng Ke HEHEL
Non-Exceutive Directors EHITEE
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond ERRTEGEE)
(Vice-Chairman) Y/ & Y/ & Y/ % Y/ =
Independent Non-Executive BIEBITEE
Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue AR Y/ R N/%& Y/ % N/&
Mr. Zhang Daorong RiBRFEE Y/ N/& Y/ & N/&
Mr. Zheng Hongliang B Rkt Y/ & N/ & Y/ N/ &

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Xie Xuan and the Chief
Executive is Mr. Xiao Jing, and their roles with the company
are separate. The Chairman provides leadership and is
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership
of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the
Company’s business development and daily management
and operations generally. Mr. Xie Xuan and Mr. Xiao Jing
does not have any material/relevant relationships.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

ERRITHAER
EFERTRNMTHREHED I RHEREERHE
BEAE - BRFRARBE B - TFAE
BETHE VAEHENFREFSANE
tE - TTHRERBEARAEBERALER
EREEMEETIF - PELEREBLEE
WEREIEE/HAEBARE -



—E-CFEH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from the code provision.
However, all the Non-executive Directors of the Company
are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent based on the annual
confirmations received.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has been established.
The current chairman of the committee is Mr. Wu Jixue,
an Independent Non-executive Director, and the other
members are Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and Mr. Xie Xuan.

Under the code provision B.1.1, a listed issuer should
establish a remuneration committee with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties. The Company, has established a remuneration
committee as required under the code provision B.1.1.
The role and function of the remuneration committee
includes the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all Executive Directors, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and to make recommendations to
the board regarding the remuneration of Non-Executive
Directors. The remuneration committee should consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the year under review, two meetings of the
remuneration committee were held.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
it comprised of namely Mr. Zheng Hongliang, Mr. Zhang
Daorong and Mr. Lo Mun Lam Raymond. The chairman
of the committee is Mr. Zheng Hongliang, an Independent
Non-Executive director. The committee considers the past
performance, qualification, general market conditions and
the Company’s articles of association in selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship during the year.

The nomination committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board, assessing the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

On 12 August 2013, the Committee nominated Mr. Xie
Xuan, as Chairman of the Board, Mr. Xiao Jing as Chief
Executive, Dr. Feng Ke as Executive Director, and Mr.
Zheng Hongliang as Independent Non-executive Director.
During the year under review one meeting of the nomination
committee was held.

During the year, the committee considered and resolved
that all the existing Directors shall be recommended to be
retained by the Company. Further, in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association (subject to the proposed
amendments at the forthcoming annual general meeting),
except Mr. Xie Xuan, the Company Chairman, those who
have served the Company for more than three years will
retire, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has established an audit committee comprising
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Daorong (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Wu Jixue and
Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and has adopted terms of reference
governing the authorities and duties of the audit committee.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The audit committee has reviewed
the draft of this Annual report and the audited financial
statements and has provided advice and comments
thereon. During the year under review four meetings of the
audit committee was held. The audit committee has met
with the auditors twice within the year under review.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year under review, Cheng & Cheng Limited have
been appointed as the external auditor of the Company.

The audit committee of the Company is responsible
for considering the appointment of the external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit
functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the total fee
paid/payable in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the Company’s external auditor is set out
below:

TEERRSE

ERERE

ARBCERAIZER ETARRNFES.281F 2R
- RUBEZEREE - BRERBEHBUIF
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BRBIEFMASERE ERZESCEMN
AEFRBEEZMBHRR 2 NG - L Hit
REZBLER - ROEFER BXEE
ERITTHAEZ NEBEFEARN  BFRZ
BemRZEEMBIT _REH -

A2 S50 T % 42 251 B 37 B
REBEFER  BBGHMEBHMARD A
W AT R B SN -

ARBIEZZBGAEEZEBEFINEZEE
REZINEZBENFTET ZERFERET
- BRZIFRBTHFEERAKEHREI
EEEBRTHZE -

BE-T-=£+-A=t+—ALFER-
ADT 25N BB R BB R IR
BmEdk Y B RERENT

2013 2012
—F—-=f —ZT—_fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET
Type of Services AR5 1E LR
Audit Service FEIZR 608,000 500,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the year, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as
at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s results and
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2013 and are
properly prepared on a going concern basis in accordance
with the applicable statutory requirements and accounting
standards. The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties which may affect the Company’s business
or cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Statements of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements and external auditor’s reporting
responsibilities as set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

On an annual basis the internal control process was
performed periodically, while the Directors have reviewed
and are satisfied with their ability to comply with the
policies installed as part of the Group’s internal control
system, including, in particular, financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.
Furthermore, the Directors are satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions, and
their training programs and budget.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Mr. Lam Ting Lok, maintains a high
standard of corporate governance and has complied with
Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review all Constitutional documents
have been filed and updated on the GEM & Company’s
websites.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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According to the GEM Listing Rules, all resolutions put
forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company after each shareholder
meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2012 Revision). However,
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more shareholders of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one shareholder of the Company which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that
such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the company

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, if a
shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”)
for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”)
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office.

The Notice (i) must include the personal information of the
Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing
Rules; and (ii) must be signed by the shareholder concerned
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness
to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal
information.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on
the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

In order to ensure the Company’s shareholders have
sufficient time to receive and consider the proposal of
election of the Candidate as a director of the Company
without adjourning the general meeting, shareholders
are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as early as
practicable preferably at least 15 business days prior to the
date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board
of Directors/Company Secretary at the Company’s
head office. For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s)
must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the Company’s head office and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed
as required by law.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to
the shareholders and investors in compliance with GEM
Listing Rules and uses a number of formal communications
channels to account to shareholders and investors for the
Company.

These include (i) the publication of quarterly and annual
reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchanging views with
the Board; (i) the Company replying to the enquires from
shareholders timely; (iv) updated and key information of
the Company available on website of the Company; (v)
the Company’s website offering communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and investors;
and (vi) the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong
serves the shareholders regarding all share registration
matters. Also, the chairman of the board would attend
the annual general meeting and he would also arrange for
the chairmen of the other committees to attend. In case
of the absence, of the chairman of such committees, he
would invite another member of the committee to attend.
These persons would be available to answer questions
at the annual general meeting. The chairman of the
independent board committee would also be available
to answer questions at any general meeting to approve
a connected transaction or any other transaction that is
subject to requires independent shareholders’ approval.
The external auditor would also be arranged to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
independent auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Company will keep on reviewing its corporate
governance standards on a timely basis and the Board
endeavour to take the necessary actions to ensure
compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B I BEN RS

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 40 to 123, which comprise the consolidated
and Company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,

138 Gloucester Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong,

Tong Yat Hung

Practising Certificate Number P0O1055

25 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fre B S B2 s

For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

Note 2013 2012
izt ZB—=%F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Turnover L 5(a) 153,756 6,574
Cost of services R 7% A AR (148,148) -
Gross profit EF 5,608 6,574
Other revenue and net income H b g R AERE 5(b) - 2,063
Administrative and operating TTE R B
expenses (33,460) (25,372)
Loss from operations K EE (27,852) (16,735)
Finance costs BbE KA 7 (1,097) (5,662)
Loss before taxation bR A E 1B 8 (28,949) (22,397)
Income tax expense PSR < 10 5,961 3,734
LOSS FOR THE YEAR XEEHE (22,988) (18,663)
Other comprehensive loss: Hi2mEE
ltems that may be reclassified HgrgEFofizEar
subsequently to profit or loss: IHE :
Exchange difference arising on BMEBINEBREELEZ
translation of foreign operations b5 =% (71) (253)
Other comprehensive loss for the KREEFZEMEHEEE
year, net of tax (FBRBITE) (71) (253)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FfE2HEEBEE
FOR THE YEAR (23,059) (18,916)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: THANLREIGRSIS -
— owners of the Company S YNEIE ZE PN 11 (13,594) (13,687)
— non-controlling interests — IR 25 (9,394) (4,976)
(22,988) (18,663)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EPANE (=Y
reEE

K E A 2 E R Em R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

Note 2013 2012
Mzt ZB—=F —T——-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TIANLREEZERSE
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 4mEE
- owners of the Company —ARNFHER A (13,680) (13,826)
— non-controlling interests — FEIE R (9,379) (5,090)
(23,059) (18,916)
HK Cents HK Cents
Al P Il
Loss per share: BREE - 13
Basic and diluted BER KRS (0.92) (1.19)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

BEPY 2 T BN AR A MR R 2 —&/F 0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
KR B ISR IR

As at 31 December 2013
R-ZFE—=Ff+=H=+—H

Note 2013 2012
eE ZB—ZF —T——

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENERE 14 366 360
Intangible assets M| EE 15 1,014 24,860
1,380 25,220
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E At e AR X 17 20,281 15,833
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEED 18 50,175 46
70,456 15,879
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENE &
Trade and other payables B 5 N E A FE BR SR 19 38,235 40,049
Tax payable FET AR IE 1,275 1,249
39,510 41,298
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ REEE (&fR)FHE
(LIABILITIES) 30,946 (25,419)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS WEERRBARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 32,326 (199)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Amount due to a director EN—RBEZIE 24 5,537 5,813
Amount due to substantial B EE R EFKTE
shareholder 24 25,106 25,859
Deferred tax liabilities BREFIEEE 20 254 6,215
30,897 37,887
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) EE(&8fE) %8 1,429 (38,086)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BA R G
Share capital f&% 7 21 148,552 138,552
Reserves {1 22 (130,754) (183,496)
Equity/(deficit) attributable to RATHEE ANEL#ER
owners of the Company Ci=) 17,798 (44,944)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RE S (16,369) 6,858
TOTAL EQUITY/(NET DEFICIT) #&##% (FFiEHE) 1,429 (38,086)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  BEMi 2 fIFZBRAERE BB HwEK 2 — &6 o
consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of RZ-ZZE—HF=AZ+THAEEEEHER

Directors on 25 March 2014, RETE o
Xie Xuan Qiu Yue i BB g
Director Director EE EE

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B 5 A0 2

As at 31 December 2013
RZFE—=F+=H=1+—H

Note 2013 2012
fizx Z—B—Z=%F Z—T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries P EB AR Z RS 16 88,659 30,310
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 REAMEWBRK 17 = -
CURRENT LIABILITIES Bt =R
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERBR 19 2,604 2,636
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NGIE 16 704 139
3,308 2,775
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES MENBEFE (3,308) (2,775)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BMEERRHER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 85,351 27,535
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERFER
Amount due to a director R —REERIA 24 46 46
Amount due to substantial FE T EBAR R IE
shareholder 24 25,125 25,878
Deferred tax liabilities RIETHRIBAE 20 = -
25,171 25,924
NET ASSETS BEFHE 60,180 1,611
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAREEE
Share capital fig s 21 148,552 138,552
Reserves 1 22 (88,372) (136,941)
TOTAL EQUITY g 60,180 1,611

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 25 March 2014.

Xie Xuan
Director

Qiu Yue
Director

BEP 2 M BN AR A B SRk 2 — 8P -

R-TE—NF=A_+THARSEFSHER

BT -

g
E¥
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

PN
FAeERE

B TR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-—=F+-A=+—HULFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAAHFAELE
Issued Convertible Non-
share Share Capital Translation notes Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
~ TRRER
E¥TRE  RbEE AAEE  EREG fe  RiER N SRR 3t
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tk TEr  TEr TEn Fitn T Thx Tk Tt
Asat 1 January 2012 RZE-—F-A-H 108269 135,790 26,020 (1,182) 9188 (377,229 (99,174) 11,948 (87,226)
Loss for the year TEEFE - - - - - (13687)  (13687) (4976 (18,663
Exchange difference arising BERNERAMEL
on translation foreign LEHEE
operations - - - (139) - - (139) (114) (259)
Total comprenensive loss FERREERLR
for the year - - - (139) - (13,687)  (13,826) (5,000 (18916)
Conversion of convertible notes ~~ $BAIRRER 30,283 46,931 - - (10,967) - 66,247 - 66,247
Deferred tax liabilities on RERE
convertible notes ERLTIEAR - - - - 1,809 - 1,809 - 1,809
30,283 46,931 - - (9,158) - 68,056 - 68,056
As at 31 December 2012 R-E-Z&
+-A=+-H 138,552 182,721 26,020 (1,321) - (390,916)  (44,944) 6,858  (38,086)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR o B R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAAHFAELE
Issued Convertible Non-
share Share Capital Translation notes Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
THEER
E¥TRE  RbEE AAEE  EREG fe  RiER Nt HERER @t
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

TEL  TEn  TERT  TER  TER  TER  TER  TEn  TER

As at 1 January 2013 R-E-=%-§-H 138,562 182,721 26,020 (1,321) - (390,916) (44,944 6,858 (38,086)
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - (13594 (13504 (9304 (22,988
Exchange difference arising BEENERMESE
on tranglation of foreign ERER
operations - - - (86) - - (86) 15 (1)
Total comprenensive loss FERREERLR
for the year - - - (86) - (13594 (13,680) (9.379) (23,089
Non-controlling interests arising on ~ HERHBRF 2
disposal of interest in a subsidiary  EZEL 2 JEERER
(Note 28(c) (Brx28(c)) - - - - - 13,848 13848 (13848 -
Issue of shares upon placing REERTRA 10,000 55,000 - - - - 65,000 - 65,000
Placing expenses HERR - (2,426) - - - - (2,426) - (2,426)
10,000 52,574 - - - 13,848 76,422 (13,848) 62,574
As at 31 December 2013 R-E-Zk
+ZR=+-H 148,552 235,295 26,020 (1,407) - (390,662) 17,798 (16,369) 1,429
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
I\/\ Eﬁi//lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

Note 2013 2012
izt ZB—Z=F —T—=
HK’000 HK’000
THERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM HEEBELEZRSRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation BRBEATE 1B (28,949) (22,397)
Adjustments for: AT ZIEFE
Interest income B A = 2
Interest expenses FELH 1,097 5,662
Depreciation of property, ME BMEREREBEZITE
plant and equipment 118 743
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 & & 4 10,841 10,841
Provision for guarantee income R A B - 4,000
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB R
written off = 32
Impairment of other receivables  H fth & Ut BR ZUR(E 169 -
Impairment of intangible assets | EERE 13,005 4,952
Other payables written back H e BR s - (2,060)
Operation (loss)/profit before "'@/ o @JHI S
changes in working capital (B18),/&F (3,719) 1,771
Increase in trade and BEH5Kk /Hﬁij}ﬂ%lﬁﬁ KIE N
other receivables (4,617) (7,712)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and % H\ﬁﬁfﬁ BRI
other payables Ve i (1,814) 1,692
Cash used in operations WL EEFTAIR S (10,150) (4,249)
Tax refunded/(paid) BR (B2 FIE 26 (215)
Net cash used in operating activities 484 %78 A 2 IR 4 %58 (10,124) (4,464)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

an\/\fﬁi}/ZﬁE%

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

Note 2013 2012
Mzt Z—B—Z=%F =—T—=—F
HK’000 HK’000
THERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM BEETHZHERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income F B WA = 2
Purchase of property, WEWE  BE
plant and equipment Begi] (124) (3)
Net cash used in investing activities & & EENFTH 2R & RIFEE (124) (1)
CASH FLOWS FROM REETHZHERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Repayment to)/advance from (BEEEZE) EEBXK
a director (753) 537
(Repayment to)/advance from (BExBREFRE),/
substantial shareholder FERFIAK (276) 4,448
Interest paid MBI (1,097) (1,130)
Placing expense AeEMx (2,426) -
Proceeds from placing of shares ~ BC&EAR D 2 TS 7B 65,000 -
Net cash generated from BMERSES 2 IREIFRE
financing activities 60,448 3,855
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) HR&RIRESZEY
IN CASH AND i, (iR )isE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 50,200 (610)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REVZIHERIRS%EHY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 46 655
Effects of foreign exchange rate  HMNEFE R Fh 2 £
changes (71) 1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZIHEFRIRES%EEHY
AT END OF THE YEAR 18 50,175 46
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  BaEff 7 T BR AL A M IEHRE T — ) o

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-—=F+-A=+—HULFE

1.

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to nearest thousand
unless otherwise stated.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are investment
holdings, provision of online content information and
related technical services, business consultation
services, internet broadband business management
and internet protocol television services.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
Amendments HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
HKFRS 1 Government Loans
Amendments
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Amendments Assets and Financial Liabilities
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities
HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
HKFRS 11 and Statements, Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 and Disclosure of Interests
Amendments in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Amendments Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 (2011)  Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (2011)  Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (2011)  Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20  Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

= A H 3
e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

FER#ET REET ERUBRE
FA(ITEFEMBREER ) (F)

FAYBREEN FEMBREER

CCHEN) 2 FE
—EFENESE
—T——FR)
BB WS BIRER
AERIZE15R
CCHEN
RV BmE - %A
AERIZE TR EXMBEE
CCHEN

ERMEHRE e BHRE
A5 105%

EBVBRE Ba
AERISE115%

ERMEHRE REMEEE xS

HERIE125% K=
BFRBMBRE RARBmE
HERIFE105% - B 2 R e

ERMIEHRE HihEae 2 s
EAFE 115 R & BIERES
ERMBRE
AERISE125%
({EETA)
EEMBHRE y
R 1357
HEgst 2R

FHIE

™

N

READ 2 E

Ho
misiy

F1R(BEIA)  IAH
&G BIEH
AERI 2B 1957
—F——%F)
EEGE BB ISR
AERIE2THR
—ET—%)
BB REsE AT &
YERIZE 2857 HBENE 2
—FT——%)

ERE(EERME BREEERRZ
HBEZREBZEE) FIEAAR
—REF20%

SMEEGER)BRAT

49



50

Annual Report 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-—=F+-A=+—HULFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs
has no material impact on these financial statements
except for as described below:

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK(SIC) - Int 12, “Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities”. It introduces a single
control model to determine whether an investee
should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure or
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee.
The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard
all the disclosure requirements relevant to an
entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally
more extensive than those previously required by the
respective standards. The Group has provided those
disclosures.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKAS 1 Amendments Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The HKAS 1 Amendments introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income. Under
the amendments, a “statement of comprehensive
income” is renamed as a “statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income”. In addition, the
amendments require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section
such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income
is required to be allocated on the same basis. The
Group has applied the new terminology to rename
“consolidated statement of comprehensive income”
as “consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income” and made additional
disclosures in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive
income may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss is disclosed.

= A H 3
e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BT ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013

B2—F

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

—ZE+= A —ALEE

(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements:

HKFRSs
Amendments

HKFRSs
Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 7
and HKAS 39
Amendments

HKFRS 10 and
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 14

HKAS 19 (2011)
Amendments

HKAS 32
Amendments
HKAS 36
Amendments
HKAS 39
Amendments
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle®

Financial Instruments®

Hedge Accounting and Amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39°

Investment Entities’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts*

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and

Continuation of Hedge Accounting'

Levies'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014
Sg‘?iﬁve for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2014 with limited exception

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016
No mandatory effective date yet determined but is

available for adoption

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. HKFRS 9
was issued in November 2009 and October 2010.
It replaces the parts of HKAS 39 that relate to
the classification and measurement of financial
instruments. HKFRS 9 requires financial assets to
be classified into two measurement categories:
those measured at fair value and those measured at
amortised cost. The determination is made at initial
recognition.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing its financial instruments and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard retains
most of the HKAS 39 requirements. The main change
is that, in cases where the fair value option taken for
financial liabilities, the part of fair value change due
to an entity’s own credit risk is recognised in other
comprehensive income rather than profit or loss,
unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The
Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9’s full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 9 upon its effective date.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of other new and revised HKFRSs, certain
of which may be relevant to the Group’s operations
and may give rise to changes in accounting policies,
changes in disclosures and remeasurement of certain
items in the financial statements. The Group is not yet
to assess their impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

= A H 3
e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-—=F+-A=+—HULFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs (which
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretation) issued by the
HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

Going concern

The Group had incurred a loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$13,594,000 during the year ended 31
December 2013 and net current assets
of approximately HK$30,946,000 as at
31 December 2013. The directors of the
Company endeavor to improve the Group’s
liquidity position and have taken measures to
reduce overheads and costs to strengthen its
cash flow position. Furthermore, the directors
of the Company are currently exploring various
options in order to provide additional equity
funding to the Group.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Going concern (Cont’d)

In view of the above, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able
to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on the going concern basis.
Should the Group be unable to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Basic of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

3.

EX

(c)

(d)
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e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basic of consolidation (Cont’d)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basic of consolidation (Cont’d)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basic of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries (Cont’d)

All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basic of consolidation (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively; and

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basic of consolidation (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)
Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the
Group in a business combination includes
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basic of consolidation (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39,
or HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when
the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain
or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at the date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

B2 —F
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to write off their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

20%—-33% or over the
remaining lease terms,
whichever is shorter

20%-50%

Leasehold
improvement

Furniture and
fixtures

Computer and
equipment

Motor vehicles

20%-33%
33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the
item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(f) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i)

(ii)

Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Other
development expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date
of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation of exclusive right of usage of
Broadcast of Audio-Video Program On Web
Permit is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of it over its
estimated useful life of eight years.

Period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont’d)

(ii) Acquired intangible assets (Cont’d)
An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use. Gains
and losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Cont’d)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable a mount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(h)

(i)

Financial assets

The financial assets of the Group are
classified into loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, and cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment, except where the
receivables are interest-free loans without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(h) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset,
such as trade receivables, are assessed for
impairment on an individual basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for receivables
could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments that pass
the credit period, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(h)

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment is the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

3.

BEXEHBR(E
(h) BABIAE
() BIFSEE ()
BB EZ A E ()

TR B SH PR AR B BR 2 A IS &
EMs  RESEREBRE
EZEREEREREERR
FTEERARITIR 2 At R
Ren8cREZHER
MR ERARE REBES
R - MmaxE A BB
HERANEERRELEZS
HHER - BILAER ZRE
EiEERBRaER - XA
ERBERERHZREE
TSEBEY ERRRMEL
B TR Z BEHRR

IWABMBEEMSE - M
BEZGRRERRZBERS
BRD - HEE SRR R
S HERTEME )Y B0 A
wEREMMD - B85 R
FRARIRAR R AU B B - Al
B AR B M - HIRIKE]
BEMIE 2 R ABERR
B - BERE ZEEESZ
PR ER AR



—E-CFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(h) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by the Group are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and
other payables, and amounts due to
subsidiaries, a director and substantial
shareholder) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting
would not be material, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(h)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company
are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the
prevailing market interest rate for similar
non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost
basis using the effective interest method
until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity
is determined by deducting the amount
of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in
equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option
is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred
to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity
date of the convertible notes, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred
to accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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Transaction costs that relate to the issue
of the convertible notes are allocated to
the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instrument.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EXE:tHB¥E(E
(h) Financial instruments (Cont’d) (hy BMABIHRE)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d) (i) BFHEERKREKE)
Convertible notes (Cont’d) oJ R =1k (48 )

BOABRBRREZEBRS
KA GRS HIRBELZ 7
Pl nEEERERER
BB - BB 2 HER S
RABERERER - MA
EER D ARRE Z X H A RIA
EREESOHZEEE I
RABRRREZFHANE
ERIESES: 3l

BRATA

AT EEGEFERETER
NEFmEaGBERECEEDH
BRI ER 2EMELH o K
NEBITZRAITADNRE
WL R IE bR B B TR
N

BRARRAG ZBATE
SEHERERERLINRE -
MEREE - HE - BT
FHEARAARG ZRATE
i 7 18 28 P AR A AT M 3K
18 o

SMEEGER)BRAT

71



72

Annual Report 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h) Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(iii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred assets, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

(i)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(iii) Derecognition (Cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of
the consideration received for the part
no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
services provided in the course of the ordinary
activities, net of discounts and related sales
taxes. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follow:

)]

(i)

(i

(i)

Income from the provision of project
consultancy services, internet solution
services and content services is
recognised in accordance with the terms
of the underlying contracts and when the
underlying services are rendered;

Income from the provision of internet
broadband business management and
internet protocol television services is
recognised in accordance with the terms of
the underlying subscription agreement and
when the underlying services are rendered;
and

Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time-apportioned basis
that takes into account the effective yield on
the assets.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(k) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, bonuses, paid leaves and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Retirement benefits schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the People Republic of China (“PRC”)
are members of central pension schemes
operated by the local governments in
the PRC and these subsidiaries make
mandatory contributions to these central
pension schemes to fund the employees’
retirement benefits. The retirement
contributions paid by the PRC subsidiaries
are based on certain percentages of the
employees’ salaries in accordance with
the relevant regulations in the PRC, and
are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
The Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits upon payment of
the retirement contributions to the central
pension schemes operated by the local
governments in the PRC.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (“the MPF Scheme”),
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(iii) Share-based payments

The fair value of the share options granted
to employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
included in profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-
based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based
payment reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

U]

(m)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(m)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Current tax and deferred
tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. When
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)
Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term
on a straight-line basis.

Contingent liabilities

Present obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliably. Possible
obligations that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as a contingent
liability unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

3.

EX

= A H 3
e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

B2 —F

—ZE+= A —ALEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the entity’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary item.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the translation reserve as a
separate component of equity. Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p)

(a)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences is re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and is not
recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

()  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are the
members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

B2 —F

3.

—ZE+= A —ALEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(a)

(r)

Related parties (Cont’d)
(b)  (Cont’d)
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vij the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person is identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of the
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management has
made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Valuation of intangible assets and useful-life
The Group has made estimations and
assumptions in relation to the potential future
cash flows of identifiable intangible assets
acquired as part of business combinations.
This assessment involves estimations and
assumptions relating to potential future
revenues, appropriate discount rates and the
useful life of such asset. These estimations and
assumptions impact the profit or loss over the
useful life of the intangible asset.

Impairment test of intangible assets
Determining whether intangible assets are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units. The value in
use calculation requires management to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account of their
estimated residual value. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values involve
management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful life
of the property, plant and equipment and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate,
such a difference may impact the depreciation in
the year when the estimate is changed and the
future period.
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N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-—=F+-A=+—HULFE

5. REVENUE 5. K=
(@ An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is (@) ANEBFRNEEBOTUON
as follows:
2013 2012
—FT-=F —ZT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Internet broadband business BEREREREER
management and internet protocol B EtEER RGN
television (“IPTV”) service income 153,148 1,030
Consultancy service income AR YA 608 5,544
153,756 6,574
(o) An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and net (o) AEEFAEMEKERBAFED
income for the year is as follows: fran T -
2013 2012
—B—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Other income Has — 1
Other payables written back H b fE < BR K D) - 2,060
Interest income B A - 2
- 2,063

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segment information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, directors of the Company, is the
type of services rendered by the Group’s operating
division for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. The Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

The Group is currently organised into two major
business divisions:

()  content solution and business consultation
services; and

(i) internet broadband business management and
IPTV services.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment
sales in the year (2012: Nil).

Segment results represent the profit/loss incurred by
each segment without allocation of corporate income
and expense, central administration cost, directors’
salaries, interest income, impairment of other
receivables, finance costs, other payables written
back and income tax expense.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets.

Segment liabilities include current liabilities other than
tax payable.

iR e IS RR M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B2 —F—=F 1T -_H=1+—HIFE

SEpEH
HRAORERRTERAMMEELEER
BN BARAES  2EHzZHBER
DEAEBEES PRBEZRFERS
8 - Txﬁﬂ$¢lﬁﬁ§%%%*i
HRIESHIMEZ LB RBZHRDED

AREBBAMEAMATEEZH D

ﬁ

() RNEFERBERTRENREIEEAR
%Rk

(i) EBRERAXBEENREBEER
AR

%%ﬁ“%%ﬁ&“%ZﬁZéﬁ

$EIZ%WﬂﬁEﬁAE&M
TE£%$%E£¥\$Z%ﬁ BE
KREfE :

DRI AR K B IR P 2 Was o R
REEHMESFEHEE (T ——F:
&) -

%%%%ﬁ%%%%%%iZﬁﬂ/E
BRUARDERBRWARFL -~ FRIT
BRA - BEEHS - FBRA - HME
WK 2 RE ~ BERA « HMEMK
R BREA R PG TRFST o

DHEEREMBALEERBILEE
MRBEE °

H

PHEBEREEMBEUIINZ REE

SMEEGER)BRAT

85



86

Annual Report 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e BT ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_FT—=F+=A=—1+—HIFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) SEREEN(EF)
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) PEPUIERELSE
2013
—%-=F

Internet

broadband

Content business

solution and management

business and IPTV

consultation services

services  ERAEIE

AEHE EBEER
BRFER EH4 Total
ERE RS ERRE st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
Segments revenue D ERES 608 153,148 153,756
Segments results DEELE (279) (19,415) (19,694)
Unallocated corporate expenses AABRFRT (7,989)
Impairment of other receivables EEWIRIE 2 RE (169)
Finance costs BERA (1,097)
Income tax expense i8R 5,961
Loss for the year AEERE (22,988)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Segment revenues and results (Cont’d)

(a)

—E-CFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE
SEERE(=F)
(a) HEplIERELS(E)

2012
—E-CfF

Internet

broadband

Content business
solution and  management
business and IPTV
consultation services
services  HEHEEIE
ASHE EBEER

S BE4 Tota
XBHAR ERRH 1@t

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TRET THET TRET

Segments revenue o B 5,544 1,030 6,574
Segments results DELELE (939) (15,089) (16,028)
Interest income FIEHA 2
Unallocated corporate FOBDARA

income 1
Unallocated corporate AABARRAX

expenses (2,770)
Other payables oA e (S BR R

written back 2,060
Finance costs BERA (6,662)
Income tax expense FTetif 3,734
Loss for the year KEEFERE (18,663)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_FT—=F+=A=—1+—HIFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. PEREE(EZ)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) HBEERERE
2013

—F-=f

Internet

broadband

Content business

solution and management

business and IPTV

consultation services

services  EHEEAEIE
REHE  EBEER

BAPER -1 Total
SRR ERRE “@st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TET TET TET

Segments assets DEEE 4,996 20,342 25,338
Unallocated assets AOREE 46,498
Consolidated assets BREE 71,836
Segment liabilities HHBE 17,087 12,750 29,837
Unallocated liabilities ANEEE 40,570
Consolidated liabilities TAEE 70,407

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. PEEEE)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d) (b) HBEEREREE)
2012
—E-CfF
Internet
broadband
Content business

solution and  management
business and IPTV
consultation services
services  HEAEIE
ASHE EBEER
BARRER B Total
S aliyy ERRE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AT TAET TAET

Segments assets DEVEBE 5,577 35,399 40,976
Unallocated assets AOBEE 123
Consolidated assets GeBE 41,099
Segment liabilities NEAE 6,293 32,900 39,193
Unallocated liabilities AAEEE 39,992
Consolidated liabilities Re8E 79,185

TMEE(ER)BRA T 89
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N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-—=F+-A=+—HULFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. PEREE(EZ)
(c) Other segment information (c) HupnipEH
2013
—E-=f

Internet

broadband

Content business

solution and management

business and IPTV

consultation services

services  EE4AEIE

MEHE EBEER

BRARR EHk4E

ET5RA0IRTS EiRRE

HK$’°000 HK$’000

TET TET

Capital expenditure BEARAX -~ =
Depreciation of property, ) ERN Y

plant and equipment ZIE 90 2

Amortisation of intangible assets BYEESH - 10,841

Impairment of intangible assets BEEERE - 13,005

2012
—T—_F

Internet

broadband

Content business

solution and  management

business and IPTV

consultation services

services  HHREEIE

NAfE  EBEER

BAATRR 5 4

SRR BERS

HK$’'000 HK$’'000

THET FET

Capital expenditure BARY 3 -
Depreciation of property, ER S

plant and equipment ZIE 35 705

Amortisation of intangible assets BYEESH - 10,841

Impairment of intangible assets BREEZRE - 4,952

90 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(d) Geographical information

(e)

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the
PRC.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by

TEREF ()
(d) thiEEE

AEBzEBERBURHE -

AEBEZELEE D 2N EBEP

geographical location is detailed below: WHHBNT -
2013 2012
—¥—=F —_T——-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FETT
PRC o] 153,756 6,574

The Group’s information about its non-current

AEBIRMIBUEE D 2 IERBE

assets by geographical location is detailed ESENT
below:

2013 2012
—¥=F —_T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FABT
PRC AR 1,267 25,219
Hong Kong &% 113 1
1,380 25,220

Information about major customers
Included in revenues from external customers
of HK$153,756,000 (2012: HK$6,574,000)
are revenues of HK$153,148,000 which arose
from services rendered to the Group’s largest
customer under the internet broadband business
management and IPTV services segment (2012:
HK$3,691,000 arose from the content solution
and business consultation services segment).

(e) BHAXEEEZ&EH

HNEF % B U 25 153,756,000 % 7T
—Z— 1 : 6,574,000 7T)
$£153,148,000/8 L2 Wi - B RS
W ke EMBEEAEREERE
BESERBITF TRAAERZRAK
RRREZBRE(ZT——F : %
BRAHERRS R RESZAR
%49 #03,691,000 7)) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BIERE

2013 2012
=TF—=F —T——-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHT

Other interest (not wholly repayable HEa A B (BERAFENRN
within 5 years) EHEE) 1,097 1,130

Imputed interest expense of AMBEERE 2 HE

convertible notes FEMAX = 4,532
1,097 5,662

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after

8. MBiRIEGIE

K& I[ﬁﬁfdﬁu ERTIEHR T I B IER

charging: 5
2013 2012
—FT-=F —T——-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHIT
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIXAN(TBIEESEH)
remuneration)
— wages, salaries and other benefits —I& -« #e MEMMEF] 1,795 1,743
— retirement benefits scheme —RRREANET B R
contributions 258 187
Auditor’s remuneration Z BRI & 608 500
Depreciation of property, W BEMXEZITE
plant and equipment 118 743
Amortisation of intangible assets G E Y 10,841 10,841
Impairment of other receivables Hith fE Y BR Sk 2 BB 169 -
Impairment of intangible assets W|ILEEZRE 13,005 4,952
Operating lease rentals in respect of  tH RIEF 7 KLHAHES
land and buildings 253 272
Legal and professional fees FRENEXER 1,108 473
Provision for guarantee income ERW AR - 4,000

92 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EERESHN
REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEH
The details of emoluments of each director are EEENEHBOT

shown below:

Year ended 31 December 2013 FoE—=fF+—H=+—HI
FE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits contributions
Fees  #i® - 2R BHER Total
Name of director Espz e REGHZ PRI “st

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET FET FET

Executive directors: BITEE:

Xie Xuan B 540 - - 540
Chu Yat Hong x— 120 - - 120
Qiu Yue Jil§ia - - - -
Xiao Jing B 5 120 - - 120
Feng Ke (Note 1) BRHPHEET) 72 - - 72

Non-executive director: FHITEE :

Lo Mun Lam, Raymond EHR 24 - - 24
Independent non- BiksiTESs:
executive directors:

Wu Jixue TG 30 - - 30

Zhang Daorong RiEE 48 - - 48

Feng Ke (Note 1) ERH ) 12 - - 12

Zheng Hong Liang (Note 2)  ZP4T = (Kizk2) 6 - - 6
972 - - 972

Note 1: Re-designated as an Executive director from a1 R-Z—=FNA—HHBT

an Independent non-executive director on 1 FNITERRHERNTES

September 2013

Note 2: Appointed on 1 September 2013 izt : HNZZT—=FhA—HEZF

TMEE(ER)BRA T 93
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-—=F+-A=+—HULFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 0.
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(@) Directors’ remuneration (Cont’d)

Year ended 31 December 2012

ESRESHEME)

(a) EEHME)

BFE-F——F+-A=+—HI
EE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits  contributions
Fees & 2AK RINEEM Total
Name of director EEHA e H A F|z REIS S @&
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET FHET FHET
Executive directors: BITES :
Chu Yat Hong (Note 3) KM (fzE3) - - - -
Xie Xuan #iEs 540 - - 540
Qiu Yue [ifo - - - -
Xiao Jing (Note 3) EV-{IER)) - - - -
Non-executive directors: FHITEE :
Lo Mun Lam, Raymond E&HR 24 - - 24
Independent non- BIEHTES:
executive directors:
Wu Jixue Y A= 30 - - 30
Zhang Daorong EREES 48 - - 48
Feng Ke B 18 - - 18
660 - - 660

Note 3: Appointed on 22 November 2012

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2012: Nil).

94 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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—E-CFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

(b) Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid employees during the
year included two (2012: two) directors whose
remuneration is set out in directors’ remuneration
in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining three (2012: three) non-director

employees are as follows:

9.

e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F—=F+-A=+—HLFE

ESRESHEME)

(b)

AisEHES

FR - AfuskEHEE T BEMA
—T-CF MES - A5
HIMN EX(QEFH—8 - K
BEM(ZT—ZF : =f1)FESF

BB ZHBFFEET -
2013 2012
—B—-=F —ZT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Salaries, allowances and

o R R EMF

other benefits 653 551

Retirement benefits scheme RORRRFFT IR
contributions 24 20
677 571

Their emoluments fell within the following band:

BEZHMENFIATHRE :

2013 2012
—F-=F —_T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET T

Nil to HK$1,000,000

£ %1,000,000/ 7T

SMEEGER)BRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-—=F+-A=+—HULFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents:

10.

F@HEX
(a) MESEHREMBIEWRERZH
EA :

2013 2012
—T—-=%F —ZT——-F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T
Current tax — PRC Enterprise ENERFIIE — %
Income Tax PR H
Charge for the year NEEFRY - 215
Deferred tax (Note 20) EIERIA (M17520) (5,961) (3,949)
Income tax credit FRiSTE R (5,961) (3,734)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as
the Group had no assessable profits for the year
(2012: Nil).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has not been
provided (2012: 25%). Taxation arising in other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
in the relevant jurisdictions.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

AN S AR E BN B B SRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F—=F+-A=+—HLFE

10. FiRHiRx (&)

Reconciliation between income tax credit (b) FIEHEGHESSESREMEE
and accounting loss per the consolidated WS RFERERREHE 2SS
statement of profit or loss and other ESiE 2 HERINT :
comprehensive income at applicable tax
rates is as follows:

2013 2012

—F-=F —_T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Loss before taxation BRTE AT E 1B (28,949) (22,397)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, IZMRIEE LR 2
calculated at the rates applicable WA R EEE X
to profit/loss in the jurisdictions BRI ERETE
concerned HEHIE (5,449) (4,374)
Income not subject to tax BEHT WA 38,439 -
Expenses not deductible for tax TEeMM 2 A
purpose (32,990) 872
Unrecognised tax losses RERBIAEE - 3,717
Utilisation of previously recognised {# A S Al B MR T IE 518
tax loss - -
Deferred tax on intangible assets A E 2 EIERTE
(Note 20) (F¥5E20) (5,961) (3,949)
Income tax credit for the year FRZAEHRER (5,961) (3,734)
Income tax recognised directly in equity (c) EENEREIRZAFENH
2013 2012
—T—=fF _—T—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHT
Deferred tax ERETIR
Arising on transactions with owners: BB AETR FIESE ¢
Deferred tax liabilities on the equity ~ AR iz 25 2
component of convertible notes BEEHIBEAE — (1,809)
- (1,809)

SMEEGER)BRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N e e I

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-_FT—=F+=A=—1+—HIFE

11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

1. XATHRANEIEBHE

2013 2012
—F-=F —_T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Amount of consolidated loss RARRI KR EE 2

attributable to owners of the NARIES AJEIRGEEER

Company dealt with in the

Company’s financial statements (4,005) (5,637)
Impairment loss on amounts due FEUL I B~ B FIE 2 R B S 1B

from subsidiaries - (750)
Company’s loss for the year KRR Z FENEE (4,005) (6,387)

The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013
includes a loss of approximately HK$4,005,000 (2012:
HK$5,637,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

12. DIVIDEND
The directors do not recommend the payment of
any dividends for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: Nil).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

12.

HE2—_Z22—=F+-_A=+—HIF
B ARARBEEAEGEREEBREERE
[E518 4,005,000 L ( ZF — = 4F
5,637,000/ 7T) B HI AR 7] 2 BT 75 4
eI

E&LIE
BEETEFUNEE_T—=F+=
—t+t—HLEFERFEAMRE(Z
—ZF ) o

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculations of the basic loss per share are

= A H 3
e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

13. BiREGHE
(a) BREFHE
SRR AR TR A T BT

based on the following data: HE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ER FET
Loss for the year attributable to NIE FSPN A
the owners of the Company RFEEEE (13,594) (13,687)
2013 2012
—T-=% —T-CF
Weighted average number of LERMEFHEE

ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January
Effect of conversion of convertible notes

R—A—BEBTEEK 1,385,518,897 1,082,687,986
RBUBRERE & - 68,862,919

Effect of placing [=h -7 92,328,767
Weighted average number of ordinary R+-A=+—RHZ
shares at 31 December AR INAE &R 1,477,847,664 1,151,550,905

Diluted loss per share

(b) WixEHEER

No diluted loss per share has been presented
as there were no potential dilutive shares
outstanding (2012: the conversion of convertible
notes had an anti-dilutive effect).

MEZNESREEEE  HEY
BERERETEZ2EERN(ZF
—ZF  ABMABREREREE

=450
vE) -

SMEEGER)BRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BT ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B2 —F—=F 1 —HA=1+—HIFEF

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE

Computer
Leasehold Furniture and Motor
improvement  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HEMERE  BERRE  SERRG RE Eh)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR Fén TR TR TR

Cost: BA
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—F-f-H 12 542 3,279 169 4,002
Additions NE - 3 - - 3
Disposal hE - (61) (555) - (636)
Exchange difference EiEE - 3 27 2 3
At 31 December 2012 and RZE5-ZF+-A=t-H
at 1 January 2013 k=3-=%-F-H 12 467 2,751 171 3,401
Additions RE 52 25 47 - 124
Writen off s - - (124) 26) (150)
Exchange difference EiER - 1 78 4 83
As at 31 December 2013 RZE-=E+-A=1-H 64 493 2,792 149 3,458
Accumulated depreciation and RiHERBERSE
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—%-f-H 10 504 2,189 169 2872
Charge for the year AEERY 2 20 721 - 743
Disposal He - ) (527) - (604)
Exchange difference ERER - 4 2% 2 30
At 31 December 2012 and R-E-—#+-A=t1-H
at 1 January 2013 k=E-=%-F-H 12 451 2,407 171 3,041
Charge for the year REERY 4 2 112 - 118
Written back i - - (124) (26) (150)
Exchange difference EHES - 1 78 4 83
As at 31 December 2013 R-E-=#+-A=t1-H 16 454 2473 149 3,092
Net carrying amount: REFE:
As at 31 December 2013 WZE-=#+-f=1-H 48 39 279 - 366
As at 31 December 2012 R-E--&#+-R=1-H - 16 344 - 360

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

= A H 3
e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

15. EREE

2013 2012
—¥-=F —_T—_—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Cost/valuation PR, 1H1E
At 1 January and at 31 December R—A—BEkt=-A=+—H 226,668 226,668
Accumulated amortisation and Rt RORERE
impairment losses
At 1 January Rn—H—H
Amortisation 3 95,514 84,673
Impairment JRAE 106,294 101,342
Amortisation for the year F 10,841 10,841
Impairment for the year FRRE 13,005 4,952
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 225,654 201,808
Net carrying amount: FREDFE -
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,014 24,860

The intangible assets represent an exclusive right of
usage of Broadcast of Audio-Video Program On Web
Permit ({5 8B4 EEREE B FAIE) (the “Permit”)
granted by the holder of the Permit (the “Holder”)
to a subsidiary of the Company under an exclusive
agreement entered into between that subsidiary of the
Company and the Holder. The Permit commenced
on 1 October 2007 and will expire on 30 September
2015. The fair value of the Permit on the date of
acquisition of that subsidiary by the Company has
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
by Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group. Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in
the valuation of similar assets.

BN EEREEPNEERREAMBFTE
(TFFAIE DRFBANMEHAEADREAR A
BRRIERFFE AR L2 BR 2 A REER
ZMBARBEHZBRERRE - SFAIERZ
FELFTA-BFEG KR _FT—1F
NAZ=Z+HER - FFA R AR B YA %
BRARAERAZAFEERAASEYEEE
BUABREEMGEMBEERFHAERA
AT HEMER - ARERFHEARD
AREANEMBEEER  YNFEHEUE
ENEABEEERMRIOZER -
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

The recoverable amount of the Permit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. For
the purpose of the impairment test, the recoverable
amount of the Permit is in accordance with valuation
prepared by Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 1 year period
and a pre-tax discount rate of 17.67% (2012:
12.98%) with no growth rate (2012: 27.7%). Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimates
are based on the past performance by holding the
Permit and management’s expectations for the market
development.

The valuation of the Permit as at 31 December
2013 was RMB800,000 (2012: RMB20,000,000)
equivalent to approximately HK$1,014,000 (2012:
HK$24,860,000). Further impairment of approximately
HK$13,005,000 (2012: HK$4,952,000) was charged
to the profit or loss. The circumstance leading to
the impairment of the Permit was mainly due to the
slowdown of growth rate of subscribers of IPTV
services arising from keen competition within the
market.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BT ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

WM EE(E)

R Ez A DR REBREEAEETE
BT - BURENRmS @ HFAEZA g
W B TR R T B EBE AT B IR A Rl
AREEEE EZVFBEERSRE
BMREGHEREMS L - 2P %E
BWE—FHE EBRHAMREA
17.67% (= — 45 :12.98%) » W&
WMER(ZE—=F :27.7%) - FHAE
BB EmTZEBRRAHERSR
A/ BernbEH  EPEEBE;HE
EREH - BREHFT HRBZEFAUE
ZBAEREMEREEYHMBEEREE
77 °

FUBFR -_ET—=ZF+-_A=+—
B2z EEARARKS800,000T(=ZF
—— % : AR ¥ 20,000,000 75T ) -
HER41,014008 T (2% —=
F ¢ 24,860,0008 7T ) © #E— R A
#913,005,000 % T ( = & — Z & -
4,952,000 ) IR B bk - SFF A&
BERBEZIGEEETETSHF MR
LEHBEBRRG AP 218 & R WA
@( °
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17.

—E-CFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

= A H 3
e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

16. RMBAS Z R

2013 2012

—B—=F —ZT——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FHT

Investments in unlisted shares, at cost & RIELTES - IR 14,473 14,473
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENGIE S 201,376 140,564
215,849 155,037

Less: Impairment losses B REEE (127,190) (124,727)
88,659 30,310

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and have no fixed repayment
terms.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 28 to consolidated financial statements

FEUL, FEAT BB A R 2 FRIB AR
2B MEREEERY -

ARBEBMBRRZAHBEHNGEAY
R M FE28 ©

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17. B RH M EMKARR

The Group The Company
x5H AAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
=% T %= —T——F%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET TET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 EWEED 5,073 1,367 - -
Prepayments, deposits and JEf 3B - 24 K

other receivables Hofth FE U BR 3K 15,208 14,466 - -
20,281 15,833 - -

AEERFEFPRHZEERRTIZER

The credit terms granted by the Group to customers
are determined on a case-by-case basis with
reference to the size of service contracts, recurrent
services provided to sales with the customers and
their credit history. The Group makes provision for
trade receivables based on specific review. Provision
is made against trade receivables after considering
the amount due, creditability of customers and other
qualitative factors.

BANEHE MREEPHERHRZHE
ERBRKEZEERELRENERE
E o AERERERIE R E 5 R
ELEE - AEEeREEI MR
EFEEREMEERRRHESER
BRARIE A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e BT ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 17.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the
Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

B REMERARRR ()
REMPRERR 2 B HERER R
BAMMT :

2013 2012
—¥—=F —_T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FEIT

0 to 30 days 0&E30K

5,073 1,367

Total trade receivables B HEWER B R

5,073 1,367

The credit period of the Group’s trade receivables
ranges from 60 days to 90 days. For certain
customers with long-estimated relationship and good
past histories, a longer credit period may be granted.

No interest was charged on the trade receivables.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these
balances. The management of the Group monitors
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and considers adequate impairment loss has been
recognised for irrecoverable amount, if necessary.
None of the trade receivable is either past due or

AEBZEFREER 2 EEHN TR
B0E90H - B THEHBHRAMER
BERFREHEZEPME  EREEH
TR -

"
iy

R S EW BRI TET B « REEH
SEBFATAERR - A%5EH
PEERSHEBANEZHER 2K
ElEe%E  TRAEDKERE &W@Zi%
BRARHAEER(NFE) - HEES
FEU R FR B BRSO o

1

N ORY
n@%%“iJHi
i&\

H

impaired.
18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. & RINEEEY
The Group
XEE

2013 2012
—E-Z=ZF ~—T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FATT
Cash and bank balances He MIRITH 50,175 46

Bank balances comprise deposits with bank held by
the Group with an original maturity of three months or
less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BT R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. B 5 R H b rEFTERE:
The Group The Company
.3 L] F48
2013 2012 2013 2012
—¥-=F T Z¥-=F —T—=%
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Trade payables B S EMERR = - - -
Accruals and BREAR
other payables H At FETBR R 38,235 40,049 2,604 2,636
38,235 40,049 2,604 2,636
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 20. BEBEEE

20.

The major deferred tax

liabilities recognised and

movements thereon during the current and prior years

are summarised below:

The Group

RFEENMBEFEOCHERZIERER

*%H

Intangible Convertible

assets notes Total

BEEE TRERER st

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

TET TET TAET

At 1 January 2012 RN-ZE——F—AF—H 10,164 1,809 11,9783

Credited to profit or loss FEARM SkEE (3,949 - (3,949)

Recognised directly in equity EERERTER - (1,809) (1,809)
At 31 December 2012 and R-ZE——F+-A=+—H

at 1 January 2013 k-Z—=F—H—H 6,215 - 6,215

Credited to profit or loss AR SEE (5,961) - (5,961)

As at 31 December 2013 RNZE—=F+-A=+—H 254 - 254

SMEEGER)BRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

20. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 20. BEBIEGEMREZ
The Company AT

Convertible
notes
TR
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2012 R-E——F—HF—H 1,809
Recognised directly in equity BEERERPER (1,809)

At 31 December 2012 and RZE——F+_A=+—HEK
at 31 December 2013 —E-=F+-A=+—H -
At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax asset REEHR - AR REETRET AT B AN
has not been recognised in respect of the unused EIB 2 RRERTLE T - MR AE A

tax losses due to the unpredictability stream of future MIBEERREEHIBEEE
taxable profits that will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised.

106 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited



21.

—E-CFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BT R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B2 —F—=F 1T -_H=1+—HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL 21. IE&
Number of
shares Amount
kB#E kx|
HK$'000
FAEL
Authorised (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each):  AERA(SREEC0E T L@R) :
Balance at 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012, MZZT——f—f—H ZE—=F
1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 +ZRA=+-B - Z%-=Zf-A-Hk
“E-ZF+-A=t+-HZEH 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid (Ordinary shares of MTRARBRA(BREB10ETLZ
HK$0.10 each) E Lﬂx)
Balance at 1 January 2012 RZB——F—f—Hz& 1,082,687,986 108,269
Issue of shares upon conversion of RARTAREEME TR (1)
convertible notes (note 1) 302,830,911 30,283
Balance at 31 December 2012 and RZE——F+-A=+-HBR
at 1 January 2013 “T-ZF—-R—Hz&H 1,385,518,897 138,552
Issue of shares upon placing (note 2) NEERETRN (F2) 100,000,000 10,000
Balance at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-R=1t—HBz&& 1,485,518,897 148,552

Notes:

GEE

(1)

On 9 October 2012, 302,830,911 ordinary shares with
par value of HK$0.10 each were issued as a result of
the exercise of the convertible notes holders with a
principal amount of HK$66,017,139 convertible notes
issued by the Company on 11 October 2010 within 24
months maturity, at the conversion price of HK$0.218
per ordinary share. The conversions gave rise to a
credit to share capital of HK$30,283,091 and the
remaining balance of approximately HK$46,931,000
was credited to share premium.

On 28 January 2013, a total of 100,000,000 Placing
Shares were successfully placed by the Placing Agent
to not less than six independent Placees at the Placing
Price of HK$0.65 per Placing Share.

1)

R-_T—=—F+AhB EHAEKE
BREEATEARIIN-_ZT—ZF+
A+—H#17TKX %% /66,017,139
Bz BRBREERE(R-_+THE@EAR
ElE)  BIOTEBERAMECIOETLZ
302,830,911 @ - R MEAER
EBAL0.218BTT ° 2T HBEERA
#8R30,283,0018 70 BH T&&4
46,931,000/ TTE T AR D& E ©

RZZE—=F—A=+N\A8 " BER
1% 5 Ih B & $£100,000,000 B B & A%
FORRNEBILARA  BEERE
it & f1%0.658 7T ©
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AR e BT ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-—=F+-A=+—HULFE

22. RESERVES 22, {#E
The Group AEEH
Convertible
Share Capital Translation notes  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
THRER
ki BXGE ERGE 1] 2itbR by

HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
AL TEL TETL TAL TAL AL

At January 2012 RoF-—£-F-R 135,790 26,00 (1,182 9158 877,229 (207443)
Loss for the year REEER - - - - (13.687) (13,687)
Exchange difference arisngon -~ AEEHEREL 2

translation of foreign operations B £% - - (139) - - (139

Total comprehensive lossfor ~ AEELEEFELE
the yeer - : (1%9) - (13,687 (13,829

Issue of shares upon conversion of R EATARZEE

convertible notes B0 46,931 - - (10,967) - 35,964
Deferred tax liabites of THREEL
convertible notes FitrEaE - - - 1809 - 1809
46,931 - - (9,158) - 31,113
At 31 December 2012 and RZE-ZF
at 1 January 2013 t-B=1-B}
“5-Z5-f-H 182,721 26,020 (1.321) - (390,916) (183,496)
Loss for the year FERER - - - - (13594) (13594)
Exchange difference arisingon &85 &L 2
translation of foreign operations [} £% - - (86) - - (6)
Total comprenensive loss for the year A5E2EEELE - - (86) - (13.594) (13,680)
Non-controlling interests arising on  EERHEB LA Z
disposal of interests in BREL HERER
a subsidiary (Note 28(c) (Fr&28(c)) - - - - 13,848 13,848
Issue of shares upon placing REESTRG 55,000 - - - - 55,000
Placing expenses RERY 2426) - - - - (2426)
52,574 - - - 13,848 66,422
At 31 December 2013 R-§-=F
tZR=1-H 235,295 26,020 (1,407) - (390,662) (130,754)
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22. RESERVES (Cont’d)

—E-CFEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

22, ## (&)

The Company AAT
Convertible
Share  Contributed notes  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
TRRER
RiyifE EQRR Bt githiE izt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT i TiEn Tin TAL
At1 January 2012 W-F-—%-F-A 135,790 13,882 9,158 (327,157) (168,327)
Loss for the year TEEER : - - (6,387) (6,387)
Issue of shares upon conversion of PR AREERETRD
convertible notes 46,931 - (10,967) - 35,964
Deferred tax liabilties of ARFE ERERBAR
convertible notes - - 1,809 - 1,809
At 31 December 2012 and R-E--#+-A=t-RRK
at 1 January 2013 -5-z£-F-A 182,721 13,882 - (333,544 (136,941)
Loss for the year AERER - - - (4,009) (4,009)
Issue of shares upon placing REERTKRA 55,000 - - - 55,000
Placing expenses RERY (2,426) - - - (2,426)
At 31 December 2013 R-%-=5+-F=t-H 235,295 13,882 - (337,549) (88,372)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the nominal value of the
ordinary shares issued by the Company and the
net asset value of a subsidiary acquired through
an exchange of shares as at the date of the group

reorganisation.

AABZEBBBRIEARRDEITER
lrEEENEBEEHRE ABEBBK
MWBZIMB AR EEFELZE
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HE—FT——F+ A=+ —HIFE
22. RESERVES (Cont’d)

23.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium, capital redemption
reserve and contributed surplus are distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of share premium, capital redemption
reserve and contributed surplus if:

() itis, or after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would be
thereby less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital account.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries
acquired through an exchange of shares as at the date
of the group reorganisation and the waive of loans by
a related party on 1 February 2004.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 3(p).

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity
component of outstanding convertible notes issued
by the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible notes in
note 3(h).

At the end of the reporting period, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Company did not have
any reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company (2012: Nil).

SHARE OPTIONS
The Company does not currently have any employee
share option scheme in effect.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

22.

23.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24, MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Balances and transactions between the Company
and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions
between the Group and other related parties are as
follows:

(i)

(i

(i)

Amount due to a director, Xie Xuan, of
approximately HK$5,537,000 (2012:
HK$5,813,000) is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and is not due for repayment within the
next twelve months.

Amount due to substantial shareholder, Asian
Dynamics International Limited, of approximately
HK$25,106,000 (2012: HK$25,859,000) is
unsecured, bearing interest at the annual rate of
5% and is not due for repayment within the next
twelve months.

Interest paid and payable to the substantial
shareholder for the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,097,000 (2012:
HK$1,130,000).

On 31 December 2012, the Group entered
into the management agreement with
Guangdong Zhicheng Weiye Investment Limited
(“Guangdong Zhicheng”), a company controlled
by Mr. Chu Yat Hong who is a substantial
shareholder and a director of the Company,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
management services to Guangdong Yingxin
Xinxi Investment Limited (“Guangdong Yingxin”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guangdong
Zhicheng. The Group would entitle the operating
profit of Guangdong Yingxin in respect of
multimedia and internet services as service fee.
During the year, the Group charged internet
broadband business management service fee
of HK$153,148,000 (2012: Nil) to Guangdong
Yingxin and reimbursed Guangdong Yingxin cost
of such services of HK$148,148,000 (2012: Nil).
The amount of HK$5,073,000 (2012: Nil) was
unsettled at 31 December 2013 and included in
trade receivables.

= A H 3
e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

24. EXFEALEIXRS
AARBEMBAR(RRDRZHE
AL 2 EBRRFEREERABT
SAES + SRR A FE PO B R o A
BEMBBATZXDFBERBMOT

(i

(i)

ENEZESEHEZRELHN R
5,537,000 8 T (=& — = F :
5,813,000 ) I EEA - 2 8
MBERRKI2EBARNERE -

FE 1 £ 2 & E Asian Dynamics
International Limited 7% T # A&
25,106,000 ;T (=& — Z F :
25,859,000 7T ) Ty 1R - R
E5%5T B R BFERARKA2ME A A

g -

TR BNEREMEZREZFE
491,097,000 0 (= ZF——4F :
1,130,000/ 7T) °

RZE——F+-_A=+—H &K
EEEEREHNEXREARAR
(TERZH] BARTEERE
REER—MEELESNAR)ET
TEEGE B AEBREM
BRBEAMBEARAR(E
RAEE] ERZHNZEAKBEAR
ARMHEERE - ANEEEER
BRAEEZHEENEBEREEZAR
BRAFEHEE N  ERRS
BRH -FR AEEMERARE
I BX 153,148,000 (=& — =
FE|)2EHMETEEBERER
HE UHEERRAEEERSEZ
X 7X148,148,000/ (=& — =
FoE) R-_T—=F+_H1
=+—H - #5,073,000/8 T (=
T—_F B)BMKRBBLFTAZ
5 FEWRIA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
RE-F—=F 1A=+ HULFE

24. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

(iv)

Included in prepayment, deposits and other
receivables was an amount of approximately
HK$2,974,000 (2012: HK$2,577,000) due from
Guangdong Yingxin. The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The remuneration of directors and other
members of key management during the year is
as follows:

24. EXFAENEIXH(E

(iv)

#92,974,000%8 T (ZF — Z4F
2,577,000/ 7T ) st AFET FRIE -
e REMEWRIEZFKIE - TI R
BRBEER - ZEHIBRHEE
A TETEREREREE -

REENTETBABRNFRNZEH
B

The Group
XEE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Short-term benefits HRE R 1,356 996
1,356 996

The remuneration of directors and key executives
is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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25.

26.

—E-CFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

= A H 3
e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

25. #&iE

EEEERE

R #K A BAR R A s
AEARBGSN RIEEERERE
m -

2013 2012
—B—=F —ZT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FETT

Within one year —FR 225 -
In the second to fifth years, inclusive S -_FEFHE(REEEME) 211 -
After the fifth year FRFE 83 -

519 -

The Group’s operating leases are for terms ranging
from 2 to 10 years.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

AEBZEEHERAN F2E105F -

26. BB TH
(a) BMBIAZER
The Group
A%H
2013 2012

—¥—=F —_T—_—F
HK$’000 HK$’000

F#IT FET
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables (including B U AR 3R
cash and cash equivalent) (BREREeMREEED)
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H At e AR SR 20,281 15,833
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRITES 50,175 46
70,456 15,879
Financial liabilities MBafs
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERRRK 38,235 40,049
Amount due to a director B —RESHIE 5,537 5,813
Amount due to substantial B E ZRRE IR
shareholder 25,106 25,859
68,878 71,721

SMEEGER)BRAT
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments (Cont’d)

26. MBIR(E)

(a)

MBIRZER (&)

The Company

XAT
2013 2012
—T=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Financial assets MBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries R EPNGIE =] 88,659 30,310
88,659 30,310
Financial liabilities IHEEE
Trade and other payables B 5N EMEMERR 2,604 2,636
Amounts due to subsidiaries JETB B A RIFIE 704 139
Amount due to a director BN —RESHIE 46 46
Amount due to substantial B E ZRRE IR
shareholder 25,125 25,878
28,479 28,699
Financial risk management and policies (b) BAFSEBSEIRRBUK

The Group’s major financial instruments
include trade and other receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade and other payables,
amount due to a director and amount due
to substantial shareholder. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

rEBZIEZEVBIABREINR
H AR - e RIRITHEER
B MEMBEMERR BNESER
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)

(i)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s functional currency is Hong
Kong dollar and the functional currency of
the majority of the subsidiaries is Renminbi.
The Group’s transactions, trade receivables
and trade payables are mainly denominated
in these currencies.

The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations, whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency risk. However,
as the net foreign exchange exposure of
the foreign operations is not significant,
the Group does not actively hedge this
foreign exchange exposure and no foreign
currency risk sensitivity is disclosed.

The Group periodically reviews monetary
assets and liabilities held in currencies other
than the functional currency to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an acceptable level,
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

= A H 3
e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

26. MBIARE
(b) BABEREERBIR(E)

() WEERE
SINES R\
ARBZNEEERET
MARDMHERR ZWEEE
BERARE AEEZXR
5 BHERUERE S E
NIRRT EAZEFERHE -

REBRERETHINER -
HEEFEAZINERR o
AT BRBINET 2 HNE
B FREW NEKR - WAE
] N0 4% 2 B ¥ R SN R R
IR A 5 BRSO NE R R GURE o

S5 52 3 4 5 DA e
MO EE R 2 EER A
& ERERFEE R
BEKTLBREREHY
FRSMEE -
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For the year ended 31

December 2013

HE-F—=F+_A=+—HILFE

26. FINANCI
(b) Fina

AL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
ncial risk management and policies

(Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate risks

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to fixed rate borrowings
from substantial shareholder (see note
24). The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk relates primarily to bank balances (see
note 18). The management considers the
Group’s exposure of the bank balances to
interest rate risk is not significant as they
have a short maturity period.

Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties, is the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk
in relation to trade receivables, the
management has strengthened the
credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the management reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the management considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties
are reputable banks or banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

26. MBIR(E)

(b)

MBEREERBUR (&)

() dEERG ()
A2 = B2
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(ii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 26. MBI R(E)

(b) Financial risk management and policies (b) HAEEMEERBE(EZ)
(Cont’d)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (iii) HEELEEEE

In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance

AEBEERDESRAR
i gEgRiehReFE
WZKF - BERFEER
EBRABEBZKFE « AR

the Group’s operations and mitigate the KRB EENE @ HAPE
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The EREEZFE - BTG

Group relies on issuing of shares and
borrowings from related parties as a
significant sources of funding.

The following tables detail the Group’s
and the Company’s remaining contractual
maturity for their financial liabilities which
are based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities and the earliest date on

REREBEALZIEER
SEZETBEESHR -

TRFANANKERARE Z
MBREZH IO BB
o HERAREERARF]
AR ERKER 2 &F H B
AEZMBABERMRRS

which the Group and the Company can be o
required to pay.
The Group AE£E
More than
Ondemand 3 months Total
or less than but less undiscounted Total
Imonths  than1year ~ Morethan  cash flows carrying
BEXS  ZERWL 1 year AEH  amount
DER  EOR-F  RiR-F  RERSE  HBESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2013 Z§-zE TEn T TEn TEn T
Trade and other payables BHRAMERER 38,285 = = 38,286 38,285
Amount due to a director Ef-4E238 - - 5,537 5,537 5,537
Amount due to substantial shareholder ERTERETE - - 25,106 25,106 25,106
38,235 - 30,643 68,878 68,878
2012 —E-CE
Trade and other payables EHREMERES 40,049 - - 40,049 40,049
Amount due to a director EN-2E53E - - 5,813 5,813 5,813
Amount due to substantial shareholder BRI TEREZE - - 25,859 25,859 25,859

40,049 - 31,672 7 n,721
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 26. MBI R(E)
(b) Financial risk management and policies (b) BEAFEEIGEERBIKL(Z)
(Cont’d)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d) (iii) FEELEGEE(E)
The Company AT
More than
Ondemand 3 months Total
or less than but less undiscounted Total

Imonths  than1year ~ Morethan  cash flows carrying
BEXS  =EANL 1 year BB amount
DR3ER  BOR-F  BB-F  RERME  REdE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000

2013 Zg-cf Fén i TEr Thr i
Trade and other payables BARAMENER 2,604 = = 2,604 2,604
Amount due to a director EN-4EEHE - - 46 46 46
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERMEBLARE 704 - - 704 704
Amount due to substantial shareholder ENTEREDE - - 25,125 25,125 25,125
3,308 - 25111 28,479 28,479
2012 -k
Trade and other payables BARAMENER 2,63 - - 2,63 2636
Amount due to a director Eff-4EE7E - - 46 46 46
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERMEBLARE 139 - - 139 139
Amount due to substantial shareholder R TEREFE - - 25,878 25,878 25,878
2175 - 25,924 28,699 28,699

1 18 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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27. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 27. BAXEHE
The Group manages its capital structure and makes REBEBEHENEE - W EAELEAR
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic M BEEENEEEL AL - B
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, TR ENERE - N T =S 2
the directors of the Company may adjust the YRFREZIREER  BREBIREERN
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to RETHED -HREBEE ST —=F8%—
shareholders and issue of new shares. No changes E——F+_A=+—RHIEERXR A&
were made in the objectives, policies or processes FAEE - BRI T E
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, REBNAEEG B RFRERERNE
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net N BEZEERINBEERNINEGEE
debt. Net debt includes trade and other payables, loan gﬁ c BEFEBIEES NEMENE
from third party and shareholders, less cash and cash FoEZRREEDT  RRESLEES
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to the #@:@ BARBIFERNBES NG IEHE
owners of the Company and non-controlling interests. REREGEZ RNREHRCEESR
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period B ERMT -
are as follows:
The Group
xEE
2013 2012
—g-=f -z -%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER THETT
Trade and other payables B 5 N E A FER IR 38,235 40,049
Amount due to a director JEN—BEEHIE 5,537 5,813
Amount due to substantial FE = ERFFIA
shareholder 25,106 25,859
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IR RIS EEY (50,175) (46)
Net debt BEFHE 18,703 71,675
Equity/(deficit) attributable to: TIATEERER (RT)
— owners of the Company S UNECIE 2 =N 17,798 (44,944)
— non-controlling interests — I AR RE 2 (16,369) 6,858
Total equity/(deficit) mrEs, (RF 1,429 (38,086)
Capital and net debt BERNBEFEE 20,132 33,589
Gearing ratio BEAGELE 92.90% 213.39%
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BE—F—=—F+-A=+—HIFEF

28. SUBSIDIARIES

28. MIBAE
(a) Particulars of the subsidiaries of the (a)
Company at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are

R-ES—=%rR_-FT—_—%+—A
=+—8 AT ZMBATFHE

as follows: wmF
Issued and )
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ '“L‘*’%st held by
registered e Gompany
Place of capital F08REL
incorporation/ Form of BETR it h
Name operation legal entity BERE/ Directly Indirectly Principal activities
28 Al EERY EAEENS ifds  EE  EE IERR
Asian Information Resources  The British Virgin -~ International business US$200  100% —  Investment holding
(BV) Limited* Islands company 200%T AR
ABRAES BREEAT
Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$ 11,228,290 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited" B ARETAT 11,208,200%T RAR
EMREARAA
Asian Information Resources  Hong Kong Limited liability HKS2 - 100% Provision of treasure functions
Finance Limited B EREMAT 2T 10 group companes
REERAREERRE
Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HKS2 - 100%  Provision of administration
Investment Limited B EREAAH 2R services 1o group
 companies
REERARETHRH
Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive
Marketing Limited 5 BEREFAT 10,0007 ks
Biztech Gompany Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100,000 - 9% Investment holding
BEHRARAR (3 EREALT 10,0007 Q012 HEBR
100%)
Vega International Group Ltd.”  The British Virgin -~ International business USs$s  100% = Investment holding
Islands company SETT REER
ABRAES ARARAT
Guangzhou Vega Investment  The PRC Limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100% Provision of corporate
Consuting Co. Ltd.* il BREANA ARH10,000,0007 finance and management
EMgZREERERAR consultancy services
RUGFHEREREARY
Guangzhou Wavecom® The PRC Limited liability RMB10,500,000 - 100%  Investment holding and
Communications and hE BREMAT (2012: RMB500,000) provision of internet
Advertising Limited AK#10,500,0007 broadband business
ENERERESARAA = management services
ARH500,0007T) RRER LIRS
BREHERRY
South Pearl Limited” The PRC Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - B5% Provision of internal protocol
ENERRGARIE hE EREAAT AR 20,000,007 television service
ERAF RLEBREEERY
* Companies not audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited * 7 5 NS Sk BB e L AT

FTBRARIERZ °
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28. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

(b)

has material non-controlling interests

= A H 3
e B ERM T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_F—=F+-A=1—HIFE

28. MBATEI(E&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that (b)

The following table lists out the information
relating to Biztech Company Limited, the only
subsidiary of the Group which has material non-
controlling interests (NCI). The summarised
financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company

HEEMBAT (HMAEXIEER
i) ZHR

TR EAEEE—HEARIE
EMEARAR(HEAEAIFER
BE)AMZER  TREJZH
BEMBZ TR AR EEHA
T e

elimination.

HK$’000
FAET
NCI percentage JEERER B DL 9%
Current assets mMENEE 30,083
Non-current assets EmBEE 1,268
Current liabilities mENEE (199,678)
Non-current liabilities FnBERE (254)
Net liabilities BEFE (168,581)
NCI SRR 1,315

Deficit attributable to owners of BERRARAREA A
Biztech Company Limited i3 faprdpinNea (167,266)
Carrying amount of NCI RIS 2 BREE 15,054
Revenue g 153,756
Loss for the year FHEBE (13,564)
Total comprehensive loss FHEBERE (13,519)
Loss allocated to NCI Sl T IR S 2 B 1R 1,220
Dividend paid to NCI ST IR RS 2 IR E -
Cash flows form operating activities KEEBEXEZHRERE 103
Cash flows form investing activities REEHZRERE -
Cash flows form financing activities RMETS I RERE 13,101

No comparative figures have been presented as
the 9% non-controlling interests was arisen from
disposal of interest in Biztech Company Limited

during the year ended 31 December 2013.

ARI%IFIERBERRE T —=
FH-A=t—HLEFERALER
BEMRERAFNER - FTIAYL
B2 BB -
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28. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

(c)

Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary
During the year, the Group disposed of 9% of its
interest in Biztech Company Limited, reducing
its continuing interest to 91%. No proceeds
on disposal was received. An amount of
HK$13,848,000 (being the proportionate share
of the carrying amount of the deficit attributable
to the owner of Biztech Company Limited) has
been transferred to non-controlling interests and
has been credited to accumulated losses.

29. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

On 10 January 2014, the Group and connected
persons, Mr. Xie Xuan and his spouse, entered
into the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Group agreed to purchase 40%
equity interest in Best Concept Limited and
40% of loan (equivalent to HK$2,700,000) owed
by Best Concept Limited at consideration of
HK$6,070,000. Mr. Xie Xuan is an Executive
director and Chairman of the Company and
accordingly, the transaction constitutes a
connected transaction. Best Concept Limited
currently owns two office property units located
in Guangzhou, PRC. Upon the completion of the
transaction, the Group has the right to use one of
the property units as the office for its operations
in Guangzhou free of any rental charges for such
period the Group shall determine as long as the
Group’s shareholding in Best Concept Limited
does not fall below 40%. The transaction was
completed on 14 February 2014. Further details
are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 10 January 2014 and 14 February 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Cont’d)

(b)  On 10 January 2014, the Group entered into an
agreement with Kasun United Company Limited
to form a limited company with principal activities
of capital management and related activities in
Asia Pacific and share capital of HK$1,000,000
of which the Group and Kasun United Company
Limited shall contribute HK$550,000 and
HK$450,000 respectively. The Group and Kasun
United Company Limited shall also provide
that company with an interest free loan of
HK$4,950,000 and HK$4,050,000 respectively.
Further details are set out in the Company‘s
announcement dated 10 January 2014.

30. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on 25 March 2014.

29.

30.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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